
 
 GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SPECIAL MEETING at 6:30 p.m.  -  REVISED 
REGULAR MEETING at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Thursday, February 15, 2018  
 

CALL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:30 p.m. District Office Meeting Room, 
504 Avenue Alhambra, 3rd Floor, El Granada. 
 
ROLL CALL Directors: President: Leonard Woren 
  Vice-President: Barbara Dye 
  Director: Jim Blanchard 
 Director: Matthew Clark 
 Director: David Seaton 
 
 Staff:  General Manager: Chuck Duffy 
  Legal Counsel: Jonathan Wittwer 
  Assistant Manager: Delia Comito 
 
The Board has the right to take action on any of the items listed on the Agenda.  The 
Board reserves the right to change the order of the agenda items, to postpone agenda 
items to a later date or to table items indefinitely. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Communications from the public and members of the District Board and District Staff 
concerning matters not on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes each. 
      
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 1.   Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Gov. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1)).  Administrative Liability Complaint R2-2017-1024 issued by the 
San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board against Sewer Authority 
Mid-Coastside.  

 
2.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Gov. Code Section 

54956.9(d)(1)).  San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board 
enforcement action against Granada Community Services District.  
 

3. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Gov. Code Section   
      §54956.9(d)(1)).  

 City of Half Moon Bay v. Granada Community Services District and Montara Water   
 and Sanitary District (RPI, Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside) - San Mateo Superior   
 Court Case No. 17CIV03092. 

1



Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
February 15, 2018 

4.   Conference with Legal Counsel – Significant Exposure to Litigation (Gov. 
Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)). (One potential case).  

 
RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
Report final Board action, if any, from Closed Session. 
 
ADJOURN SPECIAL MEETING 
 
CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Communications from the public and members of the District Board and District Staff 
concerning matters under the subject jurisdiction of the board which are not on the 
agenda.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes each. 
 
ACTION AGENDA Page No. 

1. Consideration of Variance, Rural Zone Service Determination, 5 
and Related CEQA Resolution, for Class 2A Sewer Permit 
Application for APN 047-261-030, Obispo Road 
Owner: Coastside Fire Protection District.  

Recommendation:  To be made by the Board. 
 

2. Consideration of Approving San Mateo Resource Conservation 113 
District Scope of Work Proposal and Agreement for Vegetation 
Management at the District’s Burnham Strip Property. 

Recommendation:  Approve the Agreement with the RCD. 
 
3. Consideration of Professional Services Agreement with Quiet 139 

River Land Services for Surveying and Topographic Mapping 
of the District’s Burnham Strip Parcel. 

Recommendation:  Approve the Agreement with Quiet River 
 Land Services. 

 
4. Consideration of Ordinance Amending Sections 104 and 147 

701(01)(A) of the District Ordinance Code Regarding Accessory 
Dwelling Unit and Auxiliary Structure Sewer Connection 
Charges – Second Reading. 

Recommendation: 1. Read the Ordinance title and waive by motion 
  the second reading of the Ordinance. 
 2. Approve and Adopt the Ordinance. 
 3. Direct staff to publish the Ordinance in 
  Accordance with the Government Code. 

 
 
 

2



Special and Regular Board of Directors Meetings 
February 15, 2018 

  Page No. 

 
5. Consideration of Amendment No. 3 to the GCSD FY 2017/18 Budget 153 

for Additional Funds for the Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside, 
and Associated Budget Resolution. 

Recommendation:  To be made by the Board. 
 

6. Consideration of Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Report.  169 
Recommendation:  To be made by the Board. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
7. Approval of January 18, 2018 Meeting Minutes. 183 
8. Approval of February 2018 Warrants for $282,508.22. 189 
9. Approval of December 2017 Financial Statements. 193 
10. Approval of Assessment District Distribution #7-17/18. 199 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
11. Report on seminars, conferences, or committee meetings. 203 
 
INFORMATION CALENDAR 
12. Attorney’s Report.  (Wittwer) 205 
13. General Manager’s Report.  (Duffy) 207 
14. Administrative Staff Report.  (Comito) 209 
15. Engineer’s Report.  (Kennedy Jenks) 213 
16. Future Agenda Items. -- 
 
ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 
At the conclusion of the January 18, 2018 Meeting:  
Last Ordinance adopted: No. 170 
Last Resolution adopted: No. 2018-001 
 
This meeting is accessible to people with disabilities.  Individuals who require special 
assistance to participate may request an alternative format of the agenda and packet 
materials.  Notification in advance of the meeting will enable the District to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting and the materials 
related to it.  To request a disability-related modification or accommodation, please 
contact the District office at (650) 726-7093. 
 
Except for records exempt from disclosure under section 6254 of the Public Records 
Act, all materials distributed for the discussion or consideration of items on the Agenda 
are disclosable to the public upon request, and shall be made available without delay or 
at the time of distribution to the Board.  Please contact Delia Comito at (650) 726-7093 
to request copies of Agenda materials.   

3



4



-

ITEM #1

5



6



 

 

 

 

 

TO: Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District 

FROM: Chuck Duffy, General Manager and Jonathan Wittwer, District General Counsel  

DATE: Meeting Date: February 15, 2018 

RE: Coastside Fire Protection District Fire Station 41 Project: (1) Variance; and  

(2) Rural Zone Connection Determination 

 

The Coastside Fire Protection District (CFPD) has applied to the Granada Community 

Services District (GCSD) for its Fire Station No. 41 Project (Project) to connect to GCSD’s 

public wastewater system.  CFPD’s Project requires the following discretionary approvals from 

the GCSD Board: (1) a Variance Approval; (2) a Rural Zone Connection Determination; and (3) 

a Board-approved Sewer Connection Permit.  This Staff Report addresses the first two of these 

required approvals.   

 

On October 26, 2017, GCSD sent a Notice of Incomplete Application to the applicant.  In 

its October 26, 2017 letter, GCSD notified CFPD it was required to submit information to 

support the approval of a GCSD Variance as well as favorable Rural Zone Connection 

Determination.  GCSD subsequently received an addendum to CFPD’s original Sewer 

Connection Permit Application containing additional information on CFPD’s ability to qualify 

for a Variance and Rural Zone Connection Determination.  GCSD is processing the Variance and 

Rural Zone Connection Determination based on materials CFPD submitted.  If the GCSD Board 

approves the Variance and Rural Zone Connection Determination, it may then consider approval 

of the Sewer Connection Permit at a subsequent meeting.  A discussion of each proposed action 

follows.     

  

7



1. VARIANCE 

The CFPD Project requires a Variance to enable connection to GCSD’s public wastewater 

system because it is sited on a nonconforming parcel.  Staff’s analysis is that the Project 

satisfies all required Variance findings to allow approval of the Variance with specified 

conditions.  See attached Proposed Findings. 

 

The Project is located on a 2.38-acre parcel zoned as EG/DR/CD.  The subject parcel is 

nonconforming as to size, as the EG District requires a minimum parcel size of 3.5 acres.  The 

District Ordinance Code (GCSD Code) requires an applicant to apply for a Variance whenever a 

Sewer Connection Permit is proposed for a nonconforming parcel.   GCSD Code Section 

602(3)(B) provides that:  

 

No permit shall be issued until all the following requirements have been satisfied . . . (03) 

It has been determined by the District that . . . (B) The proposed project is not prohibited 

or precluded by the regulations of the District or of any other government agency having 

jurisdiction over wastewater disposal within the District.  The District Board shall not 

make the foregoing finding, or approve any application, for any sewer permit in the 

unincorporated area of the County of San Mateo sought for any nonconforming or 

antiquated parcel, or any proposed dwelling unit not included in buildout calculations 

under the County of San Mateo Local Coastal Program. 

 

For purposes of this Section the following definitions shall apply . . . Nonconforming 

parcel is a legal parcel with an area, width and/or frontage that does not conform with 

the minimum building site area, width or frontage required by the zoning regulations 

currently in effect.  

 

Thus, GCSD has two Variance types, “nonconforming parcel” (Section 603(03)), and 

“residential units not included in buildout calculations” (Section 603(04)), each requiring distinct 

findings.  The CFPD application to connect a nonconforming parcel to the GCSD wastewater 

system requires compliance with the findings applicable to that type of Variance.  

 

Substantively, CFPD states there will be no added wastewater generation from moving 

CFPD’s preexisting fire station from a conforming parcel that currently receives sewer service to 

a nonconforming parcel in a separate zoning district and that does not currently receive sewer 

service.  While CFPD provides evidence to suggest the existing fire station will cease operations 

on its current parcel, the parcel for the existing fire station property will be available for future 

uses.  Absent evidence to the contrary, the parcel on which the existing Fire Station is located 

will accommodate future uses requiring the same, or possibly increased, sewer service in the 

future.  Thus, moving the fire station to a currently vacant parcel, as proposed, will likely add to 

total future wastewater generation in the GCSD service area. 

   

CFPD notes the County made unchallenged Variance findings when it approved the 

Project.  However, the purpose of and findings required for the County’s Variance differ 

substantially from GCSD’s Sewer Connection Permit Variance process.  In any event, GCSD’s 

required Variance Findings can me made under GCSD staff’s analysis shown in the 

attached Proposed Variance Findings.   

8



 

2. RURAL ZONE CONNECTION DETERMINATION 

The Project is located on the Burnham Strip, a Rural Island within the Urban Zone as defined 

by the Local Coastal Plan.  The GCSD Board must determine whether or not the Project 

represents a use that is commensurate with the wastewater generation of other Rural Zone 

uses allowed in the Coastal Zone.  This is a factual determination to be made by the Board.  As 

discussed below, there are facts that could support either determination.   

 

Prior to approving CFPD’s Sewer Connection Permit for its new Fire Station No. 41 

Project, GCSD must make a Rural Zone Connection Determination for the Project.  Section 

501(01) of the GCSD Code states:  

 

Any District permit issued or District service provided in the Rural Zone shall be 

commensurate with the uses and densities designated in the San Mateo County 

Local Coastal Use Land Use Plan for the property involved.   

 

Several Local Coastal Plan (LCP) policies support GCSD’s determination that the 

Burnham Strip is a Rural Island in an Urban Zone.  For instance, LCP Policy 1.3(b) states:  

 

that in order to make a logical urban/rural boundary, some land has been included within 

the urban boundary which should be restricted to open space uses and not developed at 

relatively high densities.   

 

Furthermore, the Coastal Commission has confirmed, in relation to these policies, that “the 

permitted uses and densities of rural designated land in the urban Mid-Coast are the same as rural 

designated land elsewhere in the Coastal Zone.”      

 

Neither the GCSD Code, the San Mateo County LCP, nor the San Mateo County Zoning 

Regulations contain a definition for “commensurate.”  The Oxford English Dictionary defines 

commensurate as “[c]orresponding in size or degree; in proportion.”  Thus, for the GCSD Board 

to approve any development on the Burnham Strip, it must find that such development 

corresponds to the degree and proportion of the uses (i.e., intensities) and densities designated in 

the LCP.  Further, because GCSD is making this determination under its sanitary service power 

(see, Gov. C. §61100(b)), this analysis may consider not only whether the intensity of the overall 

use is commensurate, but also whether the Project’s expected wastewater generation is 

commensurate with the estimated wastewater generation of other uses and densities authorized 

under the LCP for the Rural Island known as the Burnham Strip. 

  

CFPD disagrees that the Project is located within the Rural Zone, arguing this designation 

does not appear on the 2013 LCP Update Land Use Plan Map approved by the County and the 

Coastal Commission.  However, the Coastal Commission has long established that the Burnham 

Strip is a Rural Island within an urban area, and GCSD codified this determination in 2002.  

Prior to the August 12, 2012 Public Hearing before the Coastal Commission, GCSD Counsel 

confirmed with County and Coastal Commission staff that the 2013 LCP Update Land Use Plan 

Map does not change or supersede this designation.  Indeed, the underlying LCP Policies 

9



establishing this “Rural Island” (including LCP Policy 1.3(b) quoted above) did not change as 

part of the 2013 LCP Update.  For further discussion regarding the status of the Burnham Strip as 

a Rural Zone island inside the Urban Zone, refer to the attached document titled “May 10, 2002 

GCSD Staff Report Re: Establishing Service Area Boundaries and Urban and Rural Zones.”  

     

The LCP requires GCSD to “Restrict the activities in Rural Zones to those which are 

consistent with the maintenance of the rural nature of the area.”  (LCP Policy 2.11(d)).  Zoning 

Regulations state that the El Granada Gateway (EG) District (formerly “Community Open Space 

Conservation District”) uses should be confined to “low intensity development . . . which 

preserves, to the greatest degree possible, the visual and open space characteristics of this 

property . . .”  (County Zoning Regulations § 6229.1).  The LCP and Zoning Regulations 

establish allowed uses for these lands, including agriculture, open space, and parks.  However, 

community centers have always been allowed as a conditional use.   

    

The GCSD Board has discretion to find that the Project is commensurate with the 

allowed EG District uses (intensities) and densities.1  To support this determination, the GCSD 

Board may reference sections 6500(b) and (f) of the County Zoning Regulations, which permit 

“public service uses or public buildings in any district when found to be necessary for the public 

health safety, convenience or welfare” so long as the permitted use is consistent with the LCP.  

The GCSD Board may exercise its discretion to determine that, since the Project is a 

conditionally permitted use under section 6500(b), this fire station use is commensurate overall 

with the community center use conditionally permitted under the LCP in the EG District and is, 

thus, commensurate with Rural Zone uses.  

  

The GCSD Board may further exercise its discretion to determine that use of the 

Burnham Strip Rural Island for the Project is commensurate, or proportionate, in intensity and 

degree—as to wastewater generation to permitted uses in the EG Zone District—to a community 

center.  The GCSD Board may find that the Project, which is proposed to maintain a staff of 

three firefighters at all times, combined with office staff during the day, would generate a smaller 

or comparable amount of wastewater when compared to a community center designed to host 

large events and be used by large numbers of people (and possibly staffed by a similar number of 

employees, albeit likely no more than 16 hours a day, as compared to 24 hours a day for the 

firefighters).  To make this determination, the Board could rely on the representations of CFPD 

that operation of the Project “is expected to continue with the same staff and the same staffing 

levels as the existing Fire Station 41, which is staffed by three firefighters working at a time.”   

 

1 To find that the Project is a commensurate use within the EG District, the GCSD Board may 

not rely on the County’s analysis that the Project is in compliance with the LCP because the 

County considered the Fire District property to be in an “urban” area.  For instance, the County 

states that the “project parcel is located completely within the urban area of the urban/rural 

boundary as delineated on the LCP and Land Use Plan Map.”  The County’s LCP consistency 

analysis thus analyzes whether the Project is consistent with uses in urban zones, not rural zones.    

Furthermore, the County has not assessed local wastewater capacity issues or the Project’s 

consistency with related wastewater policies, which fall within the jurisdiction of GCSD.  Thus, 

the County’s analysis cannot be viewed as limiting the Board’s discretion. 

10



Conversely, it may also be possible for the GCSD Board to determine the Project is not 

commensurate with Rural Zone uses because the Project may generate more wastewater than 

other rural uses allowed under the LCP.   The Project may be viewed as proposing a more-

intense and higher-density use than those typically found in the Rural Zone.  To address any 

argument to the contrary, the GCSD Board may find that the zoning regulation that permits the 

placement of an institutional facility in any zone acts as an exception to the otherwise limited, 

low-density, low-intensity uses normally permitted in the Rural Zone, and that such an exception 

should be construed narrowly.  Although Zoning Regulations may permit the Project in “any 

district,” this exception does not function to override the GCSD’s Board’s discretion to assess 

whether the Project is a proportionately higher-density, higher-intensity use than the LCP and 

Zoning Regulations envision for rural, EG-zoned property.    

 

The Board may consider the Project’s need for a variance from many of the County’s 

Zoning Regulations as an indication this project represents a higher-intensity, and, thus, non-

commensurate, use.  As detailed in the July 12, 2017 Planning and Building Department Staff 

Report for the Project: “[t]he applicant is seeking a Variance from the minimum parcel size, 

minimum front and rear setbacks, maximum building and wall heights, maximum lot coverage, 

and maximum sign regulations set forth in the applicable Zoning Regulations.”   A table 

detailing these variations from the County’s Zoning Regulations is set forth in the County’s July 

12, 2017 Staff Report as follows:   

 

 To further support a finding that the Project is not a commensurate use in the Rural Zone, 

the GCSD Board may find that CFPD has not yet submitted any evidence of fire stations, or 

11



other public service use or public buildings, of similar size being placed in rural areas in the 

County’s Coastal Zone, or in lands designated as open space.   

 

CFPD has also not yet provided comparison of the wastewater generation of a fire 

station, which is designed to be staffed 24-hours a day, to similarly situated GCSD users in the 

EG District or other comparable rural zones.  In addition, while the Final EIR states the Project 

“is expected to continue with the same staff and same staffing levels as the existing Fire Station,” 

in contrast, the Draft EIR reasoned that staffing levels may increase “as the need for additional 

fire protection increases in the future.”   

 

Thus, the GCSD Board may determine the Project would impermissibly intensify uses 

beyond the open space nature and LCP Land Use Plan designation of the EG District, which 

should be retained “to the greatest degree possible.”  (County Zoning Regulations § 6229.1).   

  

12



SEWER CONNECTION PERMIT 

The Board may approve the processing of CFPD’s application for a Sewer Connection Permit 

at a later meeting if it approves the Variance and Rural Zone Connection Determination. 

 

The Board may approve the processing of the Sewer Connection Permit at a subsequent 

meeting only if it first approves the Variance and Rural Zone Connection Determination.  CFPD 

may be required to submit additional information prior to the Board’s consideration of the Sewer 

Connection Permit, including information relevant to connection charges.2  If the Board approves 

the Variance and Rural Zone Connection Determination, it will then have discretion to approve 

the Sewer Connection Permit application, deny it, or approve it with conditions.   

 

RECOMMENDATION -  It is recommended that the GCSD Board: 

 

1. Adopt the attached Proposed Resolution demonstrating compliance with CEQA and 

establishing that GCSD has duly considered the Final EIR certified by CFPD as the 

Lead Agency; 

2. Approve the Variance enabling application for connection of the Project to GCSD’s 

public wastewater system; and 

3. Make a Rural Zone Connection Determination. 

 

Attachments:  

May 10, 2002 GCSD Staff Report Re: Establishing Service Area Boundaries and Urban and 

Rural Zones 

Proposed Resolution of CEQA Compliance 

Proposed Variance Findings  

2 Materials reviewed and considered to date and which may be considered with respect to 

the application for a Sewer Connection Permit, but are not limited to the following:  

 

• May 10, 2002 GCSD Staff Report Re: Establishing Service Area Boundaries and Urban 

and Rural Zones (attached); 

• October 21, 2016 GCSD Letter to Fire District Re: Responsible Agency Status; 

• January 5, 2017 GCSD Letter to Fire District Re: Responsible Agency Status; 

• January 19, 2017 GCSD Comment Letter Re: CFPD Fire Station 41 EIR;  

• January 27, 2017 Response Letter from CFPD to Wittwer Parkin LLP;  

• March 13, 2017 GCSD Letter to Fire District Re: Responsible Agency Status; 

• CFPD Sewer Connection Permit Application; 

• October 26, 2017 Notice of Incomplete Application; 

• CFPD Addendum to Sewer Connection Permit Application; and 

• Final certified EIR, and all related CEQA documents and findings prepared, considered, 

and adopted by CFPD.  

 

All the above-referenced materials are on file with the District and are among those materials 

included in the Administrative Record for CFPD’s Project. 

13



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1:  

May 10, 2002 GCSD Staff Report Re: 

Establishing Service Area Boundaries and 

Urban and Rural Zones 

14



PILLAR POINT 

San Mateo County Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Rural Designated Lands 
in the Urban Mid-Coast 

Rural Designated Land in the 
Urban Area 

Urban/Rural Boundary 

+ 

o 

c 

15



Jonathan Wittwer 

William P. Parkin 

Board of Directors 
Granada Sanitary District 
455 Avenue Alhambra 
Post Office Box 335 
El Granada, CA 94019 

WITTWER & PARKIN, LLP 
]47 SOUTH RIvER STREET, SUITE 22] 

SANTA CRUz., CALIFORNIA 95060 
TELEPHONE: (831) 429-4055 

FACSIMILE: (831) 429-4057 
E-MAIL: office@Wittwerparkin.com 

May 10, 2002 

PARALEGAL 

Jana Rinaldi 

Re: Supplemental Staff Report re Implementation of San Mateo County Local 
Coastal Program Land Use Plan Section 2.14 - Establishing Service Area 
Boundaries and Urban and Rural Zones 

Honorable Board: 

On April 4, 2002, the Granada Sanitary District ("GSD") Board of Directors considered 
adoption of a draft Ordinance implementing San Mateo County Local Coastal Program Land Use 
Plan ("LCPLUP") Policy 2.14d (see Exhibit A attached to the Staff Report for the April 4, 2002 

Agenda Item). Due in part to inquiries by San Mateo County Counsel and San Mateo County 
Harbor District Counsel, after public input was complete, I recommended that the District Board 
continue the April 4, 2002 agenda item regarding implementation of Policy 2.14d. 
Communication with both County Counsel and Harbor District Counsel followed and a Study 
Session was subsequently noticed and held on April 29, 2002 at 2:00 p.m. at the District Offices. 
Both the County Counsel and the Harbor District Counsel have also been informed of the date, 
time and location of the May 1 6, 2002 GSD Board Meeting at which the draft Ordinance is being 

considered again. 

The purpose of this Staff Report is to summarize the basis of the recommendation to 
adopt the revised draft Ordinance Establishing Urban and Rural Zones in the Granada Sanitary 
District. 

ANALYSIS 

San Mateo County LCPLUP Policy 2.14d provides as follows: 

"Require, when a special district [such as Granada Sanitary District) ... maintains 
rural lands within their [ sic) boundaries that the special district ... divider itself] 

16



Board of Directors 
Granada Sanitary District 
Study Session re Establishment of 

Urban and Rural Zones 
July 31, 2012 
Page 2 

into rural and urban zones. Make boundaries of the urban zone, where the urban 
level services are provided, correspond to the boundaries of the urban areas and 
rural service centers established by the [San Mateo County] Local Costal 
Program. Include the rest of the district in the rural zone. Restrict the activities in 
rural zones to those which are consistent with the maintenance of the rural nature 
of the area and all other policies of the Local Coastal Program. Lower the user 
costs in the rural zone to reflect the lower level of service and minimize growth 
inducement. " 

Thus, there can be no question that Section 2.14d requires the Granada Sanitary District to 
"divide" itself "into rural and urban zones." 

Enclosed herewith is a revised draft Ordinance (Exhibit K attached) amending District 
Ordinance Code Section 500(01) to comply with San Mateo County LCPLUP Section 2.l4d by 
dividing the Granada Sanitary District "into rural and urban zones." The Rural Zone includes 
both (I) land on the rural side of the UrbanlRural Boundary; and (2) land designated by the San 
Mateo County LCP as "rural" even though it is on the urban side of the UrbanlRural Boundary. 

Two primary questions have arisen as a result of this draft Ordinance: 

(I) Should the land designated by the San Mateo County LCP as "rural" even 
though it is on the urban side of the UrbanlRural Boundary be included in the 
GSD Rural Zone? 

(2) What "lower level of service" should be provided in the Rural Zone? 

The draft Ordinance answers the first question in the affirmative and answers the second 
question by providing that the lower level of service should be "commensurate with the uses and 
densities designated in the San Mateo County Local Coastal Land Use Plan for the property 
involved." 

The reasons for answering these questions in this manner are as follows. 

1. Land designated as "rural," but located on the urban side of the Urban/Rural 
Boundary is to be treated for density purposes as if it were on the rural side of 
that Boundary. This has been determined by the California Coastal 
Commission and the County of San Mateo. 

17



Board of Directors 
Granada Sanitary District 
Study Session re Establishment of 

Urban and Rural Zones 
July 31, 2012 
Page 3 

The proper application of the San Mateo County LCP to rural lands within urban 
boundaries begins with LCPLUP Policy 1.3(b) which provides that: 

"in order to make a logical urban/rural boundary some land has been included 
within the urban boundary which should be restricted to open space use and not 
developed at relatively high densities." 

The San Mateo County Counsel opined to the County Planning Commission on March 
27, 1992 (part of Exhibit E attached to the Staff Report for April 4, 2002) that the above quoted 

language: 

"clearly evidences the intent that a limited amount of land located within the 

urban/rural boundary would not be evaluated under policies, rules and regulations 
generally applicable to urban lands. Further, specific policies of the LCP 
recognize that the rural density criteria would be applicable to these excepted 
lands." (emphasis in original) 

The County Counsel Opinion goes on to state that the rurally designated and zoned land which is 
included within the UrbanlRural Boundary under Policy 1.3(b) is to be treated, for density 

purposes, "as if it were on the rural side of the rural boundary." The Planning Staff Report to the 
Planning Commission dated April 8, 1992 (part of Exhibit E) stated that "it was the clear intent 
of the County and the Coastal Commission in adopting the LCP to regulate RMlCZ lands within 
the urban area in the same manner as those in the rural area." 

In 1997, County of San Mateo LCP Amendment No. 1-97-C to implement the Coastside 
Protection Initiative was considered by the Coastal Commission. According to the Coastal 
Commission Staff Report (Exhibit G attached to the Staff Report for April 4, 2002), LCPLUP 
Policy 1.5 was proposed to be amended "to clarify that the permitted uses and densities of rural 
designated land in the urban Mid-Coast are the same as rural designated land elsewhere in the 
Coastal Zone." That Staff Report specifically identified as being covered by this Policy "various 
vacant or public-owned parcels that are designated Agriculture, General Open Space or Public 
Recreation: land uses that are typically found in the rural area." That Staff Report also attached 
"[a] map showing the location of "Rural Designated Lands in the Urban Mid-Coast" (labeled at 
the bottom as being presented at the "San Mateo County Board of Supervisors Meeting"). That 
map is part of Exhibit F attached to the Staff Report for April 4, 2002. Given that the map was 
the basis of the 1997 Coastal Commission action in this regard, it is recommended that such map 
also be used to show and establish the District Service Area and the Urban and Rural Zones. 

18



Board of Directors 
Granada Sanitary District 
Study Session re Establishment of 

Urban and Rural Zones 
July31,2012 
Page 4 

In response to arguments that the existing density requirements elsewhere in the Coastal 
Zone should not apply to the parcels identified on the above-described map, the Coastal 
Commission Staff Report cites the above-quoted Opinion of the San Mateo County Counsel and 
states that the proposed amendment to Policy 1.5 would merely "formalize County Counsel's 
legal advice, but would not change current zoning administration" and would "clarify[] and 
maker] more explicit the existing policy of the certified LCP." Proposed San Mateo County LCP 
Amendment No. l -97-C was approved by the Coastal Commission as to Policy 1.5 (with 
additional language from the amendment to Policy 1.8 not here relevant). 

Thus, it is clear that the parcels identified on the map labeled "Rural Designated Lands in 
the Urban Mid-Coast" and attached to the Coastal Commission Staff Report for SMC LCP 
Amendment No. 1-97-C are appropriate for designation as part of the Rural Zone of the Granada 
Sanitary District Service Area Map. In fact, it is difficult to see how designation of such land as 
part of the Urban Zone would be consistent with the admonition of LCP Section 2. l4d that the 
activities in rural zones are to be restricted to those which are consistent with the maintenance of 
the rural nature of the area and that growth inducement is to be minimized. 

2. A lower level of service for land designated as "rural," but located on the urban 
side of the UrbanlRural Boundary should be "commensurate with the uses and 
densities designated in the San Mateo County Local Coastal Land Use Plan for 
the property involved." This language has been discussed with and approved 
by County Counsel for the County of San Mateo. 

The draft Ordinance establishing Urban and Rural Zones does not preclude public sewer 
service to rurally designated lands on the urban side of the Urban/Rural Boundary. County 
Counsel and I agree that Policy 2.14d does not preclude such service. Furthermore, based on our 
telephone conversation of April 25, 2002, County Counsel and I also agree that the LCPLUP 
naturally limits public sewer service to rurally designated lands on the urban side of the 

Urban/Rural Boundary to service commensurate with the permitted uses and densities of such 
rurally designated land (e.g. General Open Space, Agriculture, or Public Recreation-Community 
Park). This is consistent with the language of Section 2.14d which provides: 

"Restrict the activities in rural zones to those which are consistent with the 
maintenance of the rural nature of the area and all other policies of the Local 
Coastal Program. Lower the user costs in the rural zone to reflect the lower level 
of service and minimize growth inducement." 

Based on a draft Study Session Staff Report which I faxed to County Counsel, we agreed that the 

19



Board of Directors 
Granada Sanitary District 
Study Session re Establishment of 

Urban and Rural Zones 
July 31,2012 
Page 5 

level of service for land designated as rural, but located on the urban side of the Urban/Rural 
Boundary would appropriately be "commensurate with the uses and densities designated in the 
San Mateo County Local Coastal Program for the property involved." That language has been 
inserted into the revised draft Ordinance currently before your Board. 

The GSD Ordinance Code provides at Sections 600 - 602 that "No person shall ["make 
any connection with ... any public sewer") without having first obtained a written permit from 

the District." "No permit shall be issued until all of the following requirements have been 
satisfied: [specified requirements are listed, including that the project is not precluded by 

regulations of the District or other gove=ent agency having jurisdiction over wastewater 
disposal within the District; and that the District's wastewater facilities have the capacity to 
accommodate the quantity and quality of wastewater to be produced by the proposed project.]" 
This has been applied to mean that a property is not precluded from connecting to the District's 
public sewer if it meets the requirements set forth in the Code at Section 602. Of course, 
LCPLUP Section 2.22 precludes property outside the UrbanlRural Boundary from being 
assessed for sewage treatment facilities by SAM (and hence precludes such property from being 
hooked up to SAM's public sewer system). 

The District Code authorizes the District to determine the entitlement for non-residential 
premises connected to the public sewer pursuant to a sewer connection permit issued since the 

adoption of the District Code and identify that entitlement amount in the sewer connection 

permit. See Section 701 (05)(B)(v). For residential units, the entitlement is determined by the 
number of dwelling units authorized by the District to be connected to the public sewer. See 

Section 701 (05)(B)(iii). Section 603 authorizes the District to impose conditions and 
requirements on the issuance of a permit. 

Thus, the GSD Ordinance Code has provided for many years that GSD may determine 
the amount of wastewater disposal which is approved when a sewer connection permit is issued. 
Consistent with this long standing authority, GSD may limit the level of sewer service it provides 

to land designated "rural." 

GSD may also decline to issue a sewer connection permit if the requirements listed in 
Section 602 are not met. In that case, the property owner may apply to GSD for a private 
wastewater disposal permit (usually a septic tank) as required by Section 501 (03) of the GSD 

Ordinance Code. 

The draft Ordinance provides that "[a)ny user charges in the Rural Zone shall be reduced 
or eliminated consistent with the reduced or eliminated level of service." This is required by 

20



Board of Directors 
Granada Sanitary District 
Study Session re Establishment of 

Urban and Rural Zones 
July 31,2012 
Page 6 

LCP Section 2.14d. There are uses listed in General Open Space and Agriculture LCPLUP 
designations for which neither public sewer service, nor a private wastewater disposal system 
would appear to be required (for example, a maintenance yard for public purposes [permitted in 
RM-CZ]). For those uses, user charges most likely should be eliminated. There are also uses 
listed in General Open Space and Agriculture LCPLUP designations for which public sewer 
service at a level reduced from that which currently is being assessed is appropriate. For 
example, the easterly portion of property commonly known as "Mirada Surf' has recently been 
acquired by the County of San Mateo, apparently for parkland purposes. This property currently 

has 35 ERUs assessed to it. It is very possible that the County's use of the property will require 
less than ten percent of that level of sewer service. Reduced charges for the reduced level of 
service would be appropriate in that situation. 

Assessments for sewer service may be reduced or eliminated when a property owner 
applies for Relief from Assessment. For example, a property owner may apply to eliminate one 
or more Noncontingent Assessments where parcels have merged, or not all of the assessments 
are needed. GSD has a form for Application for Relief from Assessment. Such relief allows a 
property owner to obtain a refund for reduced or eliminated past assessments paid in addition to 
a reduction or elimination in assessments owed in the future. 

The draft Ordinance is intended to provide the accommodation to properties owned by 
public entities for the public sewer connections set forth in the Study Session Staff Report which 
is part of the May 16, 2002 Agenda Packet. 

Adoption of the draft Ordinance would result in each wastewater system permit 
application for a use on rurally designated land within the UrbanlRural Boundary being 
evaluated individually at the time the application is considered. That is currently the case as to 

all other applications. However, only the applications in the Rural Zone will be evaluated to 
confirm that the wastewater system being approved is commensurate with the permitted uses or 
density of the property as designated by the LCPLUP. 

If the GSD Board desires to provide for more specific definition of levels of service for 
identified uses in the Rural Zone, it could direct District Staff, Engineer and Counsel to return 
with a chart showing different categories of allowed uses and the wastewater system level of 
service that would be approved for each category. Of course, if the LCPLUP were amended in 
the future to add other uses, it would necessitate amendment of the Urban-Rural Zone Ordinance 
to address those new uses. In addition, adoption of an ordinance containing such categories 
might (or might not) require additional CEQA review. 

21



Board of Directors 
Granada Sanitary District 
Study Session re Establishment of 

Urban and Rural Zones 
July 31, 2012 
Page 7 

Another approach taken by some public agencies is the inclusion of a provision stating 
that the District has no intention to impose or authorize limitations or restrictions on the 
wastewater system to any property which would have the effect of taking such property or which 
would otherwise entitle the owner thereof to compensation under the Untied States Constitution, 
any California law or any judicial decisions, and that any such action is null and void. This 
provides assurance that absent a health, safety or nuisance problem related to approval of the 
wastewater system, the District will not preclude a reasonable use of property. It will be my 

recommendation to your Board as each application comes forward that it be acted on in such a 
manner as to avoid a taking of property. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED that your Board adopt the ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING 
SERVICE AREA BOUNDARIES AND DIVIDING GRANADA SANITARY DISTRICT 
INTO RURAL AND URBAN ZONES AS REQUIRED BY SAN MATEO COUNTY 
LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM as enclosed. 

Enc!. Revised Draft Ordinance 
cc: District Administrator 

District Engineer 

Sincerely, 
Granada Sanitary District General Counsel 
WITTWER & PARKIN, LLP 

Jonathan Wittwer 

22



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 2:  

Proposed Resolution of CEQA Compliance 

23



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-___ 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE GRANADA COMMUNITY 

SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING ITS COMPLIANCE WITH THE 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT AS A RESPONSIBLE AGENCY 

REGARDING CONNECTION TO ITS PUBLIC WASTEWATER SYSTEM FOR THE 

COASTSIDE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FIRE STATION NO. 41 PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, the Coastside Fire Protection District, as Lead Agency for its Fire Station 

41 Project, circulated an Initial Study, Draft Environmental Impact Report, Final Environmental 

Impact Report, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, and related documents in 

accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Public Resources Code §§ 

21000 et seq.), CEQA Guidelines (14 Cal. Code Regs. §§ 15000 et seq.), and any other 

applicable requirements, in relation to the Coastside Fire Protection District Fire Station No. 41 

Project (Project); and   

 

WHEREAS, the Granada Community Services District (GCSD) has discretionary 

permitting authority in relation to its provision of wastewater services to the Project and is, thus, 

a Responsible Agency pursuant to CEQA Guidelines § 15381; and    

 

WHEREAS, GCSD commented on the Draft Environmental Impact Report, and the 

Coastside Fire Protection District responded to GCSD’s comments; and  

 

WHEREAS, on April 26, 2017, the Coastside Fire Protection District certified its Final 

Environmental Impact Report and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to CEQA Guideline § 15096 (e), a Responsible Agency such as 

GCSD is deemed to have waived any objection to the adequacy of the EIR where, as here, 

GCSD has not taken the issue to court within 30 days after the Lead Agency files a notice of 

determination; and  

 

WHEREAS, on July 12, 2017, the County of San Mateo approved the Coastside Fire 

Protection District’s Project applications for a Coastal Development Permit, Use Permit, 

Variance, Design Review Permit, Grading Permit, and Minor Subdivision; and  

 

24



WHEREAS, the Coastside Fire Protection District has applied to the Granada 

Community Services District for discretionary Variance, Rural Zone Connection Determination, 

and Sewer Connection Permit approvals; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has independently reviewed and considered the 

relevant contents of the Initial Study, Draft Environmental Impact Report, Final Environmental 

Impact Report, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, CEQA Findings, and related 

documents for the Project.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the Granada 

Community Services District (GCSD) finds as follows in relation to each and every approval 

made by GCSD regarding connection of CFPD Fire Station No. 41 to GCSD’s Public 

Wastewater System:  

 

1. All meetings and hearings regarding each and every approval made by GCSD 

regarding CFPD’s connection of CFPD’s proposed Fire Station No. 41 to GCSD’s Public 

Wastewater System were conducted in compliance with the law, and all actions were taken in 

compliance with CEQA, State CEQA Guidelines, GCSD CEQA Guidelines, and any and all 

other applicable requirements; and  

 

2. The Board of Directors of GCSD was presented with and had the opportunity to 

review and consider all the relevant information in the Final EIR certified by CFPD as Lead 

Agency and all other materials in the Administrative Record; and  

 

3. The documents constituting the record of proceedings upon which this decision is 

based are located in the GCSD Offices and are maintained by its General Manager.   

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, on the basis, and after 

consideration and review, of the relevant record before it (including any relevant portions of the 

Initial Study, the Draft Environmental Impact Report, the Final Environmental Impact Report, 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program, the CEQA Findings, and all related documents), 

and based on the analysis and evidence detailed therein, prior to acting upon each and every 

approval made, or to be made, by GCSD regarding CFPD’s connection of CFPD’s proposed Fire 

Station No. 41 to GCSD’s Public Wastewater System, the Board of Directors of GCSD finds that 

provision of wastewater services to the Project will result in less than significant impacts on the 

environment, and that no changes or additional mitigation is required pursuant to CEQA for the 

connection of the Project to GCSD’s Public Wastewater System. 

 

 

25



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Granada Community 

Services District, this 15th day of February 2018, by the following vote: 

 

AYES:    

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:     

            

APPROVED     

       

 

_______________________________ 

LEONARD WOREN, PRESIDENT 

 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

       

_____________________________ 

DELIA COMITO, SECRETARY 

 

 

26



 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 3:  

Proposed Findings for Sewer Permit Variance 

27



FINDINGS FOR SEWER PERMIT VARIANCE 

Coastside Fire Protection District 

Obispo Road, El Granada, California 94018 

APN: 047-261-030 

 

(1) REQUIRED FINDING:  Where the property is shown on a map first recorded prior to 

August 14, 1929 and has not been approved after March 4, 1972 by a recorded final 

subdivision map, it has been lawfully created for land use purposes by having been the 

subject of a legal conveyance into ownership separate from all contiguous parcels.  

Where a parcel is 4,750 square feet or greater in the S-17 or S3 Zoning Districts, or 8,800 

square feet or greater in the S-94 Zoning District, a chain of title shall not be required to 

establish a basis for this finding unless determined to be necessary by the District Board. 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Chain of Title from a Title Insurance Company for all 

transactions claimed to constitute sale, lease or financing of the parcel which is the 

subject of the variance application and each vacant parcel sharing a boundary line with 

the subject parcel, from the date applicant contends the subject parcel was first legally 

created to the date of the application. 

 

FINDING:   

The current zoning for the subject 2.38-acre parcel is El Granada Gateway District “EG” 

and the parcel is nonconforming as to size, as the EG District requires a minimum parcel 

size of 3.5 acres. A County-issued Certificate of Compliance and a Chain of Title were 

provided to establish a basis for this Finding.  There are no vacant parcels sharing a 

boundary line with the subject parcel.  

 

The County-issued Certificate of Compliance states that the parcel is shown on a 

Subdivision Map entitled “Tract No. 4 Granada,” San Mateo County, California, 

recorded Ocotober 6, 1933 in Book 20 of Maps at Page 22.  Although this Map does not 

show the boundaries of the subject parcel, it shows that all contiguous parcels were 

separately conveyed or shown on a recorded subdivision map prior to 1945.  The parcel is 

bound on three sides by roads.  The southwesterly boundary of the parcel was created 

when Obispo Road was separately conveyed in 255 Deeds 384 from the Shoreline 

Investment Company to the County in 1914. The northwesterly boundary of the parcel is 

Avenue Portola which is shown on a Subdivision Map entitled “Plat of Re-Subdivision of 

Subdivision Nos. 2 and 3 of Granada,” San Mateo, California, recorded August 4, 1908 

in Book 6 of Maps at Page 29.  The southeasterly boundary of the parcel is Coronado 

Street which is shown on a Subdivision Map entitled “Plat of Subdivision No. 1 

Granada,” San Mateo County, California, recorded on November 18, 1907 in Book 5 of 

Maps at Page 43. Since these Subdivision Maps and the deed conveying Obispo Road 

predated the County’s July 20, 1945 subdivision ordinance, they lawfully created the 

parcel which is now owned by CFPD and which is the subject of this Variance 

Application.  The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District can, 

and hereby does, make this Required Finding (1).    

 

 

28



(2) REQUIRED FINDING: Where the property is not shown on any recorded map, but is 

shown on a deed into separate ownership recorded prior to July 20, 1945, it has been 

lawfully created for land use purposes by having been the subject of a legal conveyance 

into ownership separate from all contiguous parcels.  Where a parcel is 4,750 square feet 

or greater in the S-17 or S-3 Zoning Districts, or 8,800 square feet or greater in the S-94 

Zoning District, a chain of title shall not be required to establish a basis for this finding 

unless determined to be necessary by the District Board. 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Same as for (1) above. 

 

 FINDING:  Same as for (1) above. 

 

(3) REQUIRED FINDING: Where the property is in the Coastal Zone, it has not been 

conveyed into ownership separate from all contiguous parcels for the first time after the 

February 1, 1973 effective date of vested rights under the California Coastal Act without 

a Coastal Development Permit approving a land division for the creation of such parcel. 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED: Same as for (1) above.  Parcel A and B which comprise 

the property which is the subject of this Variance Application was conveyed into separate 

ownership from all contiguous parcels prior to February 1, 1973.  

 

 FINDING:  Same as for (1) above. 

 

(4) REQUIRED FINDING: Unless a parcel is 4,750 square feet or greater in the S-17 or S-3 

Zoning Districts, or 8,800 square feet or greater in the S-94 Zoning District, a Certificate 

of Compliance or Conditional Certificate of Compliance has been issued for the property, 

and if the property is in the Coastal Zone, a Coastal Development Permit process was 

conducted for the issuance of such Certificate, if required by law or regulation. 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  A Certificate of Compliance (conditional or 

unconditional) and a Coastal Development Permit if the subject parcel is in the Coastal 

Zone (or equivalent proof of parcel legality satisfactory to the District Board of 

Directors). 

   

FINDING:   The subject property is 2.38 acres (103,578 square feet) in the EG zone, 

which requires a minimum parcel size of 3.5 acres (152,460 square feet).   A Certificate 

of Compliance (Type “A”) was issued by the County. A Coastal Development Permit 

(“CDP”) is not required for a Type “A” Certificate of Compliance.  Applicant submitted 

that Unconditional Certificate of Compliance (Type “A”) issued by the County and 

recorded on August 19, 2015 (Document #: 2015-087529) which states that the subject 

property APN 047-261-030 “complies with the provision of the State of California 

Subdivision Map Act and the San Mateo County Subdivision Ordinance.”  For the 

reasons specified in Finding (1) above, the Board of Directors of the Granada Community 

Services District can, and hereby does, make this Required Finding (4).    

 

29



(5) REQUIRED FINDING: There are no features of the property or the development 

proposed thereon which have the potential to have a greater than usual contribution to 

wet weather sewage overflow. 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Site Plan, Topographic Map and Building Permit plans 

for the subject parcel including calculations by the drafter of the plans showing the 

percentage of the subject parcel covered with impervious surfaces. 

 

FINDING:  Pursuant to County of San Mateo Zoning Regulations for Site Coverage, the 

maximum parcel coverage is 10% for structures in the EG district, plus an additional 10% 

of site coverage for impervious surface area less than 18” above ground level. (County 

Zoning Regs §636229.4, subds. (4) and (5)).  The maximum site coverage for structures 

is 10% which equals 10,357.8 square feet in this case. The maximum site coverage for 

impervious surface area less than 18” is 10% which equals 10,357.8 square feet in this 

case. The proposed parcel coverage for the structure is 12,425 square feet (12%) and the 

proposed coverage for impervious non-structures is 20,197 square feet (19.5%).  

Although the impervious surface area exceeds the County minimum standards, the 

applicant has submitted professionally prepared drainage plans and calculations that have 

been reviewed and conditionally approved by the County Department of Public Works 

demonstrating all stormwater run-off generated from the newly created impervious 

surface area will be captured on-site through a system of on-site bioretention areas and a 

self-retaining area.  Hence, the site coverage for impervious surfaces would comply with 

the County standards and this Finding can be made. The County planning permit includes 

the following Condition of Approval for the project:  

 

The applicant shall include in their building permit submittal a Stormwater 

Management Plan (SWMP) that includes, at a minimum, exhibit(s) 

showing drainage areas and location of Low Impact Development (LID) 

treatment measures; project watershed; total project site area and total area 

of land disturbed; total new and/or replaced impervious area; treatment 

measures and hydraulic sizing calculations; a listing of source control and 

site design measures to be implemented at the site; hydromodification 

management measures and calculations, if applicable; NRCS soil type; 

saturated hydraulic conductivity rate(s) at relevant locations or hydrologic 

soil type (A, B, C, or D) and source of information; elevation of high 

seasonal groundwater table; a brief summary of how the project is 

complying with Provision C.3 of the Municipal Regional Permit (MRP); 

and detailed Maintenance Plan(s) for each site design, source control and 

treatment measure requiring maintenance. Treatment controls shall be 

designed and sized to treat runoff from new and/or replaced impervious 

areas only. 

 

The Applicant has provided the District with a copy of the SWMP required by the 

County.  The Granada Community Services District hereby requires that when 

and if it issues a sewer permit for the subject property, the Sewer Connection 

Permit Permit is conditioned to require prior approval of the location of the 

30



bioretention swales in a manner which GCSD Engineer determines will not create 

risk of inflow and infiltration into the sewer main or sewer lateral.   

 

The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District can, and hereby 

does, make this Required Finding (5).    

 

(6) REQUIRED FINDING: Provision of sewer service to the parcel which is the subject of 

the application would not significantly adversely affect the ability of the District to serve 

a conforming parcel in view of the applicable buildout limits in the County of San Mateo 

Local Coastal Program. 

 

INFORMATION REQUIRED: The District already has or can obtain this information in 

the form of documentation showing the number of parcels in the District which have 

merged or which had their development rights transferred or otherwise eliminated since 

the completion of the Parcel Inventory and Development Potential Assessment for the 

Granada Sanitary District (prepared by J. Laurence Mintier & Associates in association 

with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants (District Engineer)).  The District will apply the 

information to the application before it.  

 

FINDING:  The parcel is 103,578 square feet in size (short of the  152,460 square foot 

minimum zoning requirement used for buildout calculations by 48,882 square feet).  The 

parcel is 68% of the minimum parcel size, thus Section 603(03)(B) of the District 

Ordinance Code does not apply.  

 

The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District finds that provision 

of sewer service to the parcel which is the subject of this application will not significantly 

adversely affect the ability of the District to serve a conforming parcel in view of the 

applicable buildout limits in the County of San Mateo Local Coastal Program. 

 

 

(7) REQUIRED FINDING: Granting of the variance would not constitute a special 

privilege not available to other property owners similarly situated. 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Written statement of relevant facts from Applicant 

comparing contiguous or nearby properties. 

 

FINDING:   The parcel is 103,578 square feet in size (short of the 152,460 square foot 

minimum zoning requirement used for buildout calculations by 48,882 square feet, i.e.,  

32% short of the minimum parcel size).  While the 32% shortage could constitute a 

special privilege not available to other property owners similarly situtated, previous 

variances have been granted for parcels that are 40.32% short of the minimum parcel 

size, 56% short of the minimum parcel size, and 52% short of the minimum parcel size.  

 

The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District can and does find 

that given the unique size of the subject parcel (containing more than two acres rather 

than the more typical residential parcels of 8,800 square feet or less), provision of sewer 

31



service to the parcel which is the subject of this application would not constitute a special 

privilege and would not significantly adversely affect the ability of the District to serve a 

conforming parcel in view of the applicable buildout limits in the County of San Mateo 

Local Coastal Program. 

 

 

(8) REQUIRED FINDING: The property owner has demonstrated by a preponderance of 

the evidence presented to the District Board that the parcel cannot be rendered 

conforming (without rendering any contiguous parcel nonconforming) by acquisition of 

one or more contiguous parcels by payment of fair market value for such contiguous 

parcel(s). 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Parcel size and setback for each contiguous parcel 

sharing a boundary line with the subject parcel and name and address of owner(s) of each 

such contiguous parcel together with documentation showing that each such owner has 

been offered fair market value for a portion of such contiguous property such that the 

subject parcel would be rendered conforming.  The fair market value offer is not required 

if contiguous property is not vacant or, if developed, does not exceed minimum parcel 

size under the zoning ordinance. 

 

FINDING:   Applicant has provided a letter demonstrating why the parcel cannot be 

rendered conforming by acquisition of one or more contiguous parcels.  Applicant’s letter 

states that all contiguous lots are zoned C-1 and developed with single to multi-family 

residences. It is a factual determination for the Board to make whether these reasons are 

sufficient to establish that the parcel cannot be rendered conforming.  

 

The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District can, and hereby 

does, make this Required Finding (8).    

 

(9) REQUIRED FINDING: The component lots comprising the property do not qualify for 

merger or will be merged or rendered undevelopable as a condition of the issuance of the 

variance. 

 

 INFORMATION REQUIRED:  The District already has the needed information in the 

form of documentation showing the standards for merger in effect in the County of San 

Mateo at the time the variance application is considered by the District Board.   

 

FINDING:  The Subject Parcel does not qualify for involuntary merger under 

Government Code Section 66451.11, even though less than 3.5 acres in size because it 

was created in compliance with applicable laws and ordinances in effect at the time of its 

creation (see subsection (b)(2) of Section 66451.11).             

  

(10) REQUIRED FINDING: The current property owner will not voluntarily accept a refund 

of fees, charges and/or assessments paid in exchange for agreement that the parcel will 

32



not ever be used to generate wastewater or garbage and there is no adopted District policy 

to unilaterally implement such a refund. 

 

INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Written statement of the Applicant of intent to develop.  

There is currently no District policy for unilateral implementation of such a refund. 

 

 FINDING:  Written statement provided December 20, 2017.  

 

 

(11) REQUIRED FINDING:  For parcels which are less than 4,750 square feet in the S-17 or 

S-3 Zoning Districts, and for parcels which are less than 8,800 square feet in size in the 

S-94 Zoning District, the variance application was considered at a semi-annual meeting 

of the District Board held to consider and grant a total of no more than one semi-annual 

variance from among such variance applications submitted during the preceding six 

months based on the comparative merits of such application. 

 

INFORMATION REQUIRED:  Confirmation to be provided by District Assistant 

General Manager. 

 

FINDING:  This parcel is in the EG zone, and is not in the S-17, S-3, or S-94 zones and 

therefore the six month limitation does not apply. Variance will, therefore, not result in 

the issuance of more than one semi-annual variance.  
 

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



-

ITEM #2

113



114



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

              AGENDA MEMORANDUM   

 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Subject:   RCD Scope of Work Proposal for Burnham Strip Vegetation Management  
                                                

Date: February 15, 2018 

 
The attached proposal, last presented at the 12/14/17 board meeting, has been revised to 
change the mowing regime, which reduced the implementation cost by $9,100.  The 
accompanying amendment to the Independent Contractor Agreement is provided in 
strike-through version to illustrate the changes made to the Agreement. 
 
Staff spoke with Cleopatra Tuday, the RCD Project Coordinator, who indicated that 
either she or Joe Issel from the RCD will make room on their schedule to attend the 
meeting should the board have any questions.  

115



Scope of Work Proposal for Vegetation Management at Burnham Strip 
 

Contacts 

Cleopatra Tuday, Conservation Project 
Coordinator 
San Mateo County Resource Conservation 
District 
cleopatra@sanmateorcd.org 
(650) 712-7765 x 115 

Joe Issel, Natural Resources Specialist  
San Mateo County Resource Conservation 
District 
joe@sanmateorcd.org 
(650) 712-7765 x 106 

Appendix 

Ecological Concerns Inc. Burnham Strip Vegetation Management Scope and Fee Proposal 

(Appendix A) 

Burnham Strip SOW for Project Planning for Non-Riparian Vegetation Management (Appendix B) 

Burnham Strip Natural Resource Management Plan (Appendix C)  

MOU (Appendix D) 

Location 

Burnham Strip, Granada Community Services District, El Granada, CA 

Restoration Context/project goals/ Site History/background 

As part of converting from Granada Sanitary District to include parks and recreation services, the 

Granada Community Services District (GCSD) entered a memorandum of understanding with the 

San Mateo Resource Conservation District (RCD). The districts agreed that resource management 

may be desirable to enhance ecosystem function and habitat. There were also comments from 

the public to increase aesthetics and decrease the presence of weeds on the Strip. In April 2017, 

the RCD provided a Natural Resource Management Plan for the 6.2-acre Burnham Strip, 

reporting an inventory of natural resources and possible management recommendations 

(Appendix C). After the presentation of the Natural Resource Management Plan and subsequent 

meetings, the GCSD expressed interest in vegetation management in the form of weed control 

and non-permanent native revegetation. 

This proposal outlines the scope of work needed to implement vegetation management at the 

Burnham strip. The RCD is aware of the future potential for the conversion of the strip into a 

park. Thus, proposed work is intended to be “soft” vegetation management that would improve 

the Burnham Strip in the interim of more permanent development.   

Project area 

Vegetation management will be implemented in three areas: two open fields and a compacted 

area (See Map). The majority of the work will be focused on the two open fields. Towards the 

116



northeast corner of the property is potential wetland dominated by Schoenoplectus pungens 

(Common threesquare) and Potentilla anserine (Pacific potentilla). Extra caution will be made to 

minimize impacts to the wetted area. The area along the west side of the strip is CalTrans right-

of-way, and would be included into this plan. CalTrans participation in the Burnham Strip 

vegetation management is pending, but anticipated. 

Vegetation management Approach: 

Initial vegetation management work will begin in the winter of 2017/2018. Continual vegetation 

management throughout the year will suppress the growth of weedy and invasive species and 

maintain a more visually aesthetic green space year-round. The RCD acts on an adaptive 

management principle, some aspects of the vegetation management approach can be changed 

based on evidence through monitoring, such as timing of mowing. 

 Year 1 

Target Species Removal: Targeted species include: Cortaderia jubata (Jubata grass), 

Albizia lophantha (Plume Acacia), Cotoneaster lacteus (Late Cotoneaster), other 

Cotoneaster species, and Rubus armeniacus (Himalayan Blackberry). These species are 

target plants because of their ability to invade habitat, impact on the environment, and 

high chance of successful removal from the site. Note, Helminthotheca echioides (Bristly 

ox-tongue) is listed on the Natural Resources Management Plan for the Burnham Strip as 

a target species, but is not listed for targeted removal in this proposal. Work to 

completely remove this species would take extensive effort. Targeted species removal 

work includes spraying Jubata grass, hand removal of Himalayan blackberry, removal of 

late cotoneaster and plume acacia. Removal of target species will be done during the 

winter of 2017/2018.  

Weeding in Potential Wetland area: To avoid any harm to wildlife in the wetland areas, 

any weedy species found within this area (see map) will be hand pulled. To avoid mowing 

the area, the wetland will be flagged off with rope and t-posts.  

Mowing: The RCD will work with GCSD and current landscapers on a mowing regime to 

better control Helminthotheca echioides (Bristly ox-tongue), and other weedy plants. The 

RCD suggests mowing once in the winter of 2017/2018 and two to three more times 

during spring and summer. Specific mowing times will depend on site conditions and 

weather—The RCD will coordinate with GCSD on proper mowing times. 

Native Revegetation: Initially, the RCD and GCSD agreed to native revegetation in the 

form of seeding. However, for the low effort and cost of seeding, there is also low 

success in the amount of plants that germinate and survive. Therefore, seeding across 

the entire managed area is not recommended. Broadcast seeding can be targeted around 

the parking area and project boarder to increase pollinator habitat and increase 

wildflowers in visible areas, but this action is not included in this scope of work. Another 

117



alternative to native revegetation would be the installation of a hedgerow along the 

Burnham Strip’s northern border along Obispo Road. The hedgerow would comprise of 

hardy coastal bluff species including coyote bush (Baccharis pilularis) and California sage 

(Artemisia californica), which would be installed without irrigation. The species included 

in the hedgerow are designed to not need watering, although watering by hand in the 

summer months is recommended (through volunteers, RCD, or contractor).  

Monitoring: Project monitoring would include physical site visits and picture 

documentation when needed to qualify the health of the site and to help adjust the 

vegetation management project. 

Tasks 

Task 1—Project Management 

This includes all aspects of project management, including but not limited to: site visits, 

coordination with GCSD, Caltrans, subcontractor and others as necessary, coordinating project 

implementation, mileage, supplies, oversite of project budget, invoicing, attendance and 

participation at GCSD board meetings.  

 Task 2—Project Implementation 

Implementing vegetation management listed in the Vegetation Management Approach. 

Implementation will start the winter of 2017/2018. Implementation and maintenance will be 

completed by a subcontractor and managed by the RCD. Monitoring will be in the form of photo 

documenting once a year by RCD staff, or when site visits are convenient.  

If native revegetation is wanted in a more active form, the RCD recommends the installation of 

an un-irrigated hedgerow, outlined in the vegetation management section. This will increase 

pollinator and bird habitat and act as a barrier between the strip and Obispo Road. This item is 

not included in the scope of work budget, but can be included if the GCSD desires. Hedgerow 

installation: $1,700.00.  

 

Budget breakdown by Task 

Task Cost 

Task 1—Project 
Management $5,000.00 
Task 2—Implementation $10,800.00 

Total $15,800.00 

118



 

119



 

   

PHONE: 831.319.2571 125 Walk Circle FAX: 831.457.1606 

 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

 

12/5/2017 

 

Cleopatra, 

 

Ecological Concerns, Inc. is pleased to provide a proposal for vegetation management 

work at the Burnham Strip project site. 

 

Our proposal includes treatment of jubata, blackberry, acacia and other invasive shrubs, 

and mowing. I have prepared the attached scope and cost proposal based on the 

documents provided and our site visit. ECI has extensive experience working in sensitive 

habitats and challenging vegetation management projects.  

 

Our firm has 25 years of experience performing habitat restoration work to great success 

and to the satisfaction of many clients and regulatory agencies over the years.  We know 

how to accomplish project goals in sensitive areas with high quality and cost 

effectiveness, and we are experienced in quality control and adaptive management 

techniques to ensure the planned work accomplishes project goals in a timely and 

efficient manner.  

 

Please feel free to contact me with any questions regarding this proposal. We look 

forward to the opportunity to utilize our experience and relationships to add value to your 

team on this project. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

John Morley 

Lead Estimator 

Ecological Concerns Inc. 

831.319.2571 (cell) 

831.457.1606 (fax) 

 

120



 

   

PHONE: 831.319.2571 125 Walk Circle FAX: 831.457.1606 

 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

 

BURNHAM STRIP VEGETATION MANAGEMENT 

SCOPE AND FEE PROPOSAL 

 
Item No. Task Unit QTY Rate Cost

1 Jubata Treatment LS 1.00          1,100.00$      1,100.00$       

2 Invasive Tree/Shrub Removal LS 1.00          2,700.00$      2,700.00$       

3 Flag and Hand Weed Wetland Area LS 1.00          2,200.00$      2,200.00$       

4 Himalayan Blackberry Removal LS 1.00          4,300.00$      4,300.00$       

5 Mowing EA 3.00          3,200.00$      9,600.00$       

19,900.00$     Total Bid  
 

 
 

JUBATA TREATMENT includes labor and materials to spray jubata grass individuals on site 

with a foliar application. All herbicide treatments will be performed in compliance with the PCA 

recommendation and will be performed under the supervision of a QAL. Is a PCA for this site 

does not exist, ECI can provide. 

 

INVASIVE TREE/SHRUB REMOVAL includes labor and materials to remove acacia and 

cotoneaster in the southern-most drainage ditch. Stumps will be painted with herbicide (Garlon 4 

suggested) to ensure they do not resprout in the future.  

 

FLAG AND HAND WEED WETLAND AREA includes labor and materials to perform a brief 

field survey of the wetland area, flag with t-posts and string, and hand weed invasive species from 

the area. This flagging will ensure the area is not damaged by mowing and will aid in future 

management efforts. 

 

HIMALAYAN BLACKBERRY REMOVAL includes labor and materials to cut and remove 

the patch of invasive blackberry found on the third drainage ditch. Blackberry patches will be cut 

with a brush cutter to reveal root ball locations. Root balls will then be dug out and all plant 

material will be off-hauled to be properly disposed of. Price also includes a follow-up visit to 

remove any root balls missed during initial removal. 

 

MOWING includes labor and materials to mow the entire strip with a tractor. Price assumes that 

site will be accessible by equipment. Initial scope includes four mowing visits, to be used at the 

discretion of the RCD and Owner. Additional mowing visits can be added at the same unit cost 

described above. 

 

 

 

 

121



 

   

PHONE: 831.319.2571 125 Walk Circle FAX: 831.457.1606 

 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

 

Notes 

1. Any contract initiated for the above scope must include this entire proposal (including 

price table, scope description, notes and exclusions) as an attachment to the contract, 

2. Labor rates for all items are based on prevailing wage rates for Landscape Tradesman I 

San Mateo County, please notify if other wage rates apply. 

 

 

Exclusions 

1. All work not specified above, 

2. Permits or permit fees of any kind, 

3. SWPPP, 

4. Site protection, fencing or security of any work, 

5. Site furnishings or signs, 

6. General liability or auto insurance limits above $2 million per occurrence unless 

insurance umbrella is specifically provided for as above, 

7. Liquidated damages, 

8. Liability for damage due to vandalism, fire, or other unforeseen events beyond our 

control, 

9. Bonds excluded. 

122



 

   

PHONE: 831.319.2571 125 Walk Circle FAX: 831.457.1606 

 Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

 

Company Profile 

 

Firm Name:    Ecological Concerns Incorporated 

Mailing Address:   125 Walk Circle 

Nursery Location:  336 Golf Club Drive 

Office Address:  609 Pacific Avenue, Suite 101 

    Santa Cruz, California 95060 

 

Phone:    831.459.0656 

Fax:    831.457.1607 

Web:    www.ecologicalconcerns.com 

 

FED ID No:   77-0530713 

CA SBE Vendor:  00023829 

 

Project Principal:  Josh Fodor 

    831.750.2359 
    jtfodor@ecologicalconcerns.com 

 

Project Biologist:  John Morley 

    831.319.2571 
    jmorley@ecologicalconcerns.com 

 

Project Botanist:  Ellen Uhler  

    831.750.2365 
    euhler@ecologicalconcerns.com 

 

Project Superintendent: Vicente Aceves 

    831.750.0195 
    vaceves@ecologicalconcerns.com 
 

     

Professional Licenses & Certificates: 
A. California Contractor License No. 778397 

B. Certified Professional in Erosion & Sediment Control  #5000 and #8143 

C. QSP/QSD Certificate #00523 and #25487 

D. Qualified Applicators License #118387 and #138279 

E. California Nursery License B2893.001 

F. California Water Management & Restoration Certificate (UCB) 

G. Wetland Delineation - Army Corps of Engineers 

H. ISA Certified Arborist - #we-11535a 

 

 

123



Proposal to Granada Community Services District 
for 

Burnham Strip SOW for Project Planning for Non-Riparian Vegetation Management 
 
Contacts 

Cleopatra Tuday 
Conservation Project Coordinator  
cleopatra@sanmateorcd.org 
(650) 712-7765 x 115 
 
Joe Issel, Natural Resources Specialist  
San Mateo County Resource Conservation District 
joe@sanmateorcd.org 
(650) 712 – 7765 x 106 

      
Appendix 

MOU (Appendix A) 

Burnham Strip Natural Resource Management Plan Proposal (Appendix B) 

Burnham Strip Natural Resource Management Plan (Appendix C) 

 

Background 

As part of Granada Sanitary District’s (GSD) application to reorganize into the Granada 

Community Services District (GCSD) and add parks and recreation services, the Resource 

Conservation District (RCD) and GSD entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (Appendix 

A).  The districts agreed that resource management may be necessary or desirable to protect or 

enhance ecosystem function and wildlife habitat, reduce erosion, manage storm water and 

runoff, protect or enhance water quality, minimize the risk of catastrophic fire, plan for and 

adapt to climate change, and otherwise protect or improve soil, water, air, wildlife, and other 

watershed resources.  Based on the district’s  history of partnership towards protection of 

water quality in local creeks and beaches, their desire to collaborate on resource management 

and conservation practices on GCSD lands, and the RCD’s purpose and mandate in San Mateo 

County, they agreed that GCSD would consult with the RCD in planning for parks and recreation 

services to collaboratively identify beneficial projects on lands acquired or operated by GCSD, 

and budget for the RCD to conduct resource management work on such lands in an ongoing 

fashion. 

The RCD provided GCSD a natural resource management plan (Appendix C) for the 6.2 acre 

Burnham Strip. The report provided an inventory of natural resources and outlined four 

124

mailto:cleopatra@sanmateorcd.org
mailto:joe@sanmateorcd.org


management recommendations. The GCSD expressed an interest in vegetation management 

outside of the riparian zone was agreed to be a priority project.  

 

 

Scope of Work 

There is roughly 4 acres of the Burnham strip, not including the riparian area, that could benefit 

from vegetation management. The proposed work would be within Field 1, Field 2 and parts of 

the compacted area (Figure 1). Vegetation management would include removal of targeted 

weedy species, timed mowing to reduce weed cover and revegetation of natives by seeding to 

decrease weed cover.  

The total proposed cost to plan for a vegetation management project in the non-riparian area 

of Burnham Strip is $5,000. The RCD will invoice GCSD on a time and materials basis. 

Task 1-Project Planning 

Project planning will result in a more detailed scope of work for project design and 

implementation, including cost estimates for the initial implementation—targeted at $25,000. 

Costs for planning includes, but not limited to: staff time to coordinate with contractors on cost 

estimating design and implementation, staff time to develop project management budget, site 

visits, invoicing, reporting, coordination with GCSD and others as necessary, and attendance 

and participation at meetings. The final scope of work for project design and implementation 

will include estimated costs for project implementation, project design, and project 

management.  

Cost: $5,000 

125



 

Figure 1. Map illustrates the site location of the invasive plant removal project on Field 1, Field 2 and parts 

of the compacted area. 

C
o

m
p

acted
 A

re
a 

126



 

AMENDMENT # 1 TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

FOR BURNHAM STRIP RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 

This Amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into effective the ____ 

day of ______________________, by and between the GRANADA 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (hereinafter called “GCSD”), and the 

SAN MATEO COUNTY RESOURCE AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT (hereinafter 

called “RCD”), parties to the INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

FOR BURNHAM STRIP RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PLAN, dated May 31, 2017 

(“Agreement”).  For valuable consideration, the parties agree to 

amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

Section 2 of the Agreement is changed in its entirety to read:  

 

2. COMPENSATION.   

A. In consideration for RCD accomplishing said 

result, GCSD agrees to pay RCD as follows: RCD shall be 

paid in accordance with the Fee Proposal set forth in 

section 2.B, below.  Payment of compensation under this 

Agreement and Amendment shall not exceed a total of 

$30,800 $41,600 during the term of this Agreement, 

unless such term is extendedextended, or GCSD 

authorizes additional work or subcontracting under this 

Agreement and Amendment.  Payment will be made to RCD 

within 30 days of receipt of each monthly invoice for 

services rendered submitted by RCD.  If GCSD fails to 

pay RCD within 90 days after any invoice is submitted, 

GCSD agrees RCD shall have the right to consider such 

failure in payment a material breach of this entire 

Agreement and Amendment, and, upon written notice, the 

duties, obligations, and responsibilities of RCD under 

this Agreement and Amendment shall be suspended or 

terminated.  In such event, GCSD shall promptly pay RCD 

for all fees and charges owed to, and services provided 

by, RCD.  GCSD agrees that the periodic billings from 

RCD to GCSD, are correct, conclusive, and binding on 

GCSD unless GCSD, within 30 days from the date of 

receipt of such billing, notifies RCD in writing of 

alleged inaccuracies, discrepancies, or errors in 

billing.  GCSD shall in any event pay the portion of 

the invoice not in dispute. 

   

B. FEE SCHEDULE  

The maximum compensation for each Scope of Services 

task is as follows:  

1. Task 1 (Plan Development Management) 

compensation shall not exceed $5,000. 

Formatted: No Spacing, Left, Tab stops: Not at  3.25"

127



2. Task 2 (Development of Burnham Strip Natural 

Resource Management Plan) compensation shall not 

exceed $10,000. 

3. Task 3 (Conduct Resource Management 

Activities on the Burnham Strip) compensation 

shall not exceed $1910,9800. 

i. [OPTIONAL] Hedgerow Installation: $1,700. 

If this optional task is selected the 

compensation for Task 3 shall not exceed 

$21,600 

4. Task 4 (Task 3 Project Management) compensation 

shall not exceed $5,000.  

 

Exhibit A is changed to add Task 3 and Task 4:  

 

Task 3: Conduct Resource Management Activities to Portions of 

GCSD’s Burnham Strip Project Site 

 

A. General Activities and Purpose 

RCD shall contract for the removal of targeted non-native 

and invasive species, conduct other work to reduce weed 

cover, and revegetate the Burnham Strip with native plant 

species, as set forth below.  All work shall be uniformly 

performed in the areas identified in Exhibit A.1 as “Field 

1,” “Field 2,” “Impink,” and “Compacted Area Perimeter” 

(collectively, “Project Site”).  In entering into such 

contract, RCD shall comply with all procurement requirements 

applicable to it and to GCSD.   

 

The purpose of RCD’s management work on the Project Site 

shall include the following:  

1. Decrease population, coverage, diversity, and 

competitiveness of non-native and invasive plant 

species; 

2. Increase population, coverage, diversity, and 

competitiveness of native plant species; and  

3. Improve wildlife habitat.  

 

B. Non-Native and Invasive Plant Removal 

1. RCD shall require its contractor to target non-

native and invasive plant species, including all non-

native and invasive plant species identified in Exhibit 

A.2.  RCD shall require its contractor to prioritize 

for removal jubata grass (Cortaderia jubata) and all 

other non-native and invasive species recommended for 

removal herein and in Exhibit A.1.  While RCD agrees to 

require its contractor to target all non-native plant 

species, GCSD understands that not all such species may 

be removed. 

128



 

2. RCD’s contractor may use any and all removal 

methods RCD determines are beneficial to the 

rehabilitation and management of the Project Site.  

Such removal methods include mechanical, chemical, and 

biological.  Mechanical removal includes activities 

such as hand pulling and digging, 

suffocation/solarization, and cutting/mowing.  Chemical 

removal uses herbicides to kill plants and inhibit 

regrowth. RCD shall consult with GCSD no less than 48 

hours before the use of chemical removal to minimize 

public concern about said use. Biological removal 

includes the use of native insects, exotic organisms 

(diseases, insects, or wildlife), and prescribed 

grazing to restore natural controls and reduce 

dominance of invasive plants within the plant 

community.  

 

3. RCD shall require its contractor to conduct repeat 

removal treatments to continually reduce and eliminate 

non-native and invasive plant populations on the 

Project Site.  

 

4.3. RCD shall ensure its plant removal and 
revegetation work complies with all local, state, and 

federal laws, and that it follows best management 

practices for any and all removal and revegetation 

methods it utilizes. Furthermore, RCD shall require its 

contractor to ensure that its removal and revegetation 

activities cause no negative impacts to waterways or 

wildlife. 

 

5.4. Non-Native and Invasive Plant Removal shall 
include the following services:  

i. Target Species Removal: Targeted species 

include: Cortaderia jubata (Jubata grass), 

Albizia lophantha (Plume Acacia), Cotoneaster 

lacteus (Late Cotoneaster), other Cotoneaster 

species, and Rubus armeniacus (Himalayan 

Blackberry). These species are target plants 

because of their ability to invade habitat, 

impact on the environment, and high chance of 

successful removal from the site. Note, 

Helminthotheca echioides (Bristly ox-tongue) is 

listed on the Natural Resources Management Plan 

for the Burnham Strip as a target species, but 

is not listed for targeted removal in this 

proposal. Work to completely remove this 

species would take extensive effort. Targeted 

129



species removal work includes spraying Jubata 

grass, hand removal of Himalayan blackberry, 

removal of late cotoneaster and plume acacia. 

Removal of target species will be done during 

the winter of 2017/2018. 

ii. Weeding in Potential Wetland area: To avoid 

any harm to wildlife in the wetland areas, any 

weedy species found within this area (see 

Exhibit A.1) will be hand pulled. To avoid 

mowing the area, the wetland will be flagged 

off with rope and t-posts. 

iii. Mowing: Setting up mowing regime to control 

Helminthotheca echioides (Bristly ox-tongue), 

and other weedy plants. Timing of mowing will 

happen once in the winter of 2017/2018 and two 

to three more times during spring 

C.    Native Plant Revegetation shall include the 
following services. RCD shall require its contractor to 

submit a Statement of Work, subject to the approval of 

GCSD.  The Statement of Work shall contain a Revegetation 

Plan with methods RCD determines will best accomplish the 

growth, restoration, and maintenance of native species 

populations on the Project Site.  Initially, the RCD and 
GCSD agreed to native revegetation in the form of seeding. 

However, for the low effort and cost of seeding, there is also 

low success in the amount of plants that germinate and 

survive. Therefore, seeding across the entire managed area is 

not recommended. Broadcast seeding can be targeted around the 

parking area and project boarder to increase pollinator 

habitat and increase wildflowers in visible areas. Another 

alternative to native revegetation would be the installation 

of a hedgerow along the Burnham Strip’s northern border along 

Obispo Road. The hedgerow would comprise of hardy coastal 

bluff species including coyote bush (Baccharis pilularis) and 

California sage (Artemisia californica), which would be 

installed without irrigation. The species included in the 

hedgerow are designed to not need watering, although watering 

by hand in the summer months is recommended (through 

volunteers, RCD, or contractor). 

 

  

D.C. Coordination with Caltrans 
The California Department of Transportation (“Caltrans”) 

owns and manages a narrow band of land located between the 

Project Site and Highway 1, as shown in Exhibit A.11.  RCD 

shall use its best efforts to coordinate with Caltrans to 

prevent non-native and invasive plant vectors from Caltrans’ 

land from migrating onto the Project Site, for the purpose 

of reducing or eliminating Caltrans’ land as a source of 

non-native plant repopulation onto the Project Site.   

130



 

 

Task 4: Project Management, Monitoring, and Reporting for Task 3 

 

A. Project Management for Task 3 

RCD shall conduct activities to effectively manage the 

implementation of Task 3the Natural Resources 

Management Plan, including, but not limited to:  

1. Identifying GCSD’s management needs and 

priorities;  

2. Obtaining any and all permits required to 

implement Task 3  

3. Project Site visits;  

4. Development and oversight of project budget;  

5. Subcontracting;  

6. Invoicing;  

7. Monitoring and reporting, pursuant to section B, 

below;  

8. Coordination with GCSD, Caltrans, subcontractors, 

and others; and  

9. Attendance and participation at related meetings. 

9.10. Advising as needed regarding the development 

of a park plan for the Burnham Strip and other 

improvements to GCSD property.  

 

B. Monitoring and Reporting 

RCD shall conduct on-site monitoring of its 

contractor’s removal and revegetation work performed 

under this Amendment at least bi-annually. Project 

monitoring would include physical site visits and 

picture documentation when needed to qualify the health 

of the site and to help adjust the vegetation 

management project.  RCD shall annually submit a 

written report to GCSD staff, summarizing the results 

of its removal and revegetation work implemented under 

Task 3.  Such reporting shall, at a minimum, briefly 

summarize the following:   

1. The work of RCD’s contractor to date and in the 

reporting year;  

2. The results of RCD’s monitoring activities;  

3. The net change, if any, of the approximate 

proportion of non-native and invasive plant cover, and 

the total approximate proportion of non-native and 

invasive plant cover;  

4. The net change, if any, of the approximate 

proportion and diversity of native plant cover, and the 

total approximate proportion of native plant cover;  

5. An update on RCD’s coordination with Caltrans; and  

6. The total budget used and the total remaining.  

131



   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands the 

day and year first above written and hereby represent having the 

authority to do so. 

 

SAN MATEO COUNTY RESOURCE  GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES  

CONSERVATION DISTRICT   DISTRICT  

 

Date: ___________________  Date: ______________________ 

 

By: _____________________ (name) By: ________________________ 

                   

 _____________________ (title)     GCSD Board President 

         

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By: _______________________ 

    Jonathan Wittwer, 

    GCSD General Counsel 

 

Attachments:  Exhibit A.1 

   Exhibit A.2 

 

DISTRIBUTION: GCSD Board  

General Manager 

Assistant General Manager 

Resource Conservation District 

 

132



 

AMENDMENT # 1 TO INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

FOR BURNHAM STRIP RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 

This Amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into effective the ____ 

day of ______________________, by and between the GRANADA 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (hereinafter called “GCSD”), and the 

SAN MATEO COUNTY RESOURCE AND CONSERVATION DISTRICT (hereinafter 

called “RCD”), parties to the INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

FOR BURNHAM STRIP RESOURCE MANAGEMENT PLAN, dated May 31, 2017 

(“Agreement”).  For valuable consideration, the parties agree to 

amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

Section 2 of the Agreement is changed in its entirety to read:  

 

2. COMPENSATION.   

A. In consideration for RCD accomplishing said 

result, GCSD agrees to pay RCD as follows: RCD shall be 

paid in accordance with the Fee Proposal set forth in 

section 2.B, below.  Payment of compensation under this 

Agreement and Amendment shall not exceed a total of 

$30,800 during the term of this Agreement, unless such 

term is extended, or GCSD authorizes additional work or 

subcontracting under this Agreement and Amendment.  

Payment will be made to RCD within 30 days of receipt 

of each monthly invoice for services rendered submitted 

by RCD.  If GCSD fails to pay RCD within 90 days after 

any invoice is submitted, GCSD agrees RCD shall have 

the right to consider such failure in payment a 

material breach of this entire Agreement and Amendment, 

and, upon written notice, the duties, obligations, and 

responsibilities of RCD under this Agreement and 

Amendment shall be suspended or terminated.  In such 

event, GCSD shall promptly pay RCD for all fees and 

charges owed to, and services provided by, RCD.  GCSD 

agrees that the periodic billings from RCD to GCSD, are 

correct, conclusive, and binding on GCSD unless GCSD, 

within 30 days from the date of receipt of such 

billing, notifies RCD in writing of alleged 

inaccuracies, discrepancies, or errors in billing.  

GCSD shall in any event pay the portion of the invoice 

not in dispute. 

   

B. FEE SCHEDULE  

The maximum compensation for each Scope of Services 

task is as follows:  

1. Task 1 (Plan Development Management) 

compensation shall not exceed $5,000. 

133



2. Task 2 (Development of Burnham Strip Natural 

Resource Management Plan) compensation shall not 

exceed $10,000. 

3. Task 3 (Conduct Resource Management 

Activities on the Burnham Strip) compensation 

shall not exceed $10,800. 

4. Task 4 (Project Management) compensation shall 

not exceed $5,000.  

 

Exhibit A is changed to add Task 3 and Task 4:  

 

Task 3: Conduct Resource Management Activities to Portions of 

GCSD’s Burnham Strip Project Site 

 

A. General Activities and Purpose 

RCD shall contract for the removal of targeted non-native 

and invasive species, conduct other work to reduce weed 

cover, and revegetate the Burnham Strip with native plant 

species, as set forth below.  All work shall be performed in 

the areas identified in Exhibit A.1 as “Field 1,” “Field 2,” 

“Impink,” and “Compacted Area Perimeter” (collectively, 

“Project Site”).  In entering into such contract, RCD shall 

comply with all procurement requirements applicable to it 

and to GCSD.   

 

The purpose of RCD’s management work on the Project Site 

shall include the following:  

1. Decrease population, coverage, diversity, and 

competitiveness of non-native and invasive plant 

species; 

2. Increase population, coverage, diversity, and 

competitiveness of native plant species; and  

3. Improve wildlife habitat.  

 

B. Non-Native and Invasive Plant Removal 

1. RCD shall require its contractor to target non-

native and invasive plant species, including all non-

native and invasive plant species identified in Exhibit 

A.2.  RCD shall require its contractor to prioritize 

for removal jubata grass (Cortaderia jubata) and all 

other non-native and invasive species recommended for 

removal herein and in Exhibit A.1.  While RCD agrees to 

require its contractor to target all non-native plant 

species, GCSD understands that not all such species may 

be removed. 

 

2. RCD’s contractor may use any and all removal 

methods RCD determines are beneficial to the 

rehabilitation and management of the Project Site.  

134



Such removal methods include mechanical, chemical, and 

biological.  Mechanical removal includes activities 

such as hand pulling and digging, 

suffocation/solarization, and cutting/mowing.  Chemical 

removal uses herbicides to kill plants and inhibit 

regrowth. RCD shall consult with GCSD no less than 48 

hours before the use of chemical removal to minimize 

public concern about said use. Biological removal 

includes the use of native insects, exotic organisms 

(diseases, insects, or wildlife), and prescribed 

grazing to restore natural controls and reduce 

dominance of invasive plants within the plant 

community.  

 

 

3. RCD shall ensure its plant removal and 

revegetation work complies with all local, state, and 

federal laws, and that it follows best management 

practices for any and all removal and revegetation 

methods it utilizes. Furthermore, RCD shall require its 

contractor to ensure that its removal and revegetation 

activities cause no negative impacts to waterways or 

wildlife. 

 

4. Non-Native and Invasive Plant Removal shall 

include the following services:  

i. Target Species Removal: Targeted species 

include: Cortaderia jubata (Jubata grass), 

Albizia lophantha (Plume Acacia), Cotoneaster 

lacteus (Late Cotoneaster), other Cotoneaster 

species, and Rubus armeniacus (Himalayan 

Blackberry). These species are target plants 

because of their ability to invade habitat, 

impact on the environment, and high chance of 

successful removal from the site. Note, 

Helminthotheca echioides (Bristly ox-tongue) is 

listed on the Natural Resources Management Plan 

for the Burnham Strip as a target species, but 

is not listed for targeted removal in this 

proposal. Work to completely remove this 

species would take extensive effort. Targeted 

species removal work includes spraying Jubata 

grass, hand removal of Himalayan blackberry, 

removal of late cotoneaster and plume acacia. 

Removal of target species will be done during 

the winter of 2017/2018. 

ii. Weeding in Potential Wetland area: To avoid 

any harm to wildlife in the wetland areas, any 

weedy species found within this area (see 

135



Exhibit A.1) will be hand pulled. To avoid 

mowing the area, the wetland will be flagged 

off with rope and t-posts. 

 

C. Coordination with Caltrans 

The California Department of Transportation (“Caltrans”) 

owns and manages a narrow band of land located between the 

Project Site and Highway 1, as shown in Exhibit A.1.  RCD 

shall use its best efforts to coordinate with Caltrans to 

prevent non-native and invasive plant vectors from Caltrans’ 

land from migrating onto the Project Site, for the purpose 

of reducing or eliminating Caltrans’ land as a source of 

non-native plant repopulation onto the Project Site.   

 

 

Task 4: Project Management, Monitoring, and Reporting for Task 3 

 

A. Project Management for Task 3 

RCD shall conduct activities to effectively manage the 

implementation of the Natural Resources Management 

Plan, including, but not limited to:  

1. Identifying GCSD’s management needs and 

priorities;  

2. Obtaining any and all permits required to 

implement Task 3  

3. Project Site visits;  

4. Development and oversight of project budget;  

5. Subcontracting;  

6. Invoicing;  

7. Monitoring and reporting, pursuant to section B, 

below;  

8. Coordination with GCSD, Caltrans, subcontractors, 

and others; and  

9. Attendance and participation at related meetings. 

10. Advising as needed regarding the development of a 

park plan for the Burnham Strip and other improvements 

to GCSD property.  

 

B. Monitoring and Reporting 

RCD shall conduct on-site monitoring of its 

contractor’s removal and revegetation work performed 

under this Amendment at least bi-annually. Project 

monitoring would include physical site visits and 

picture documentation when needed to qualify the health 

of the site and to help adjust the vegetation 

management project.  RCD shall annually submit a 

written report to GCSD staff, summarizing the results 

of its removal and revegetation work implemented under 

Task 3.  Such reporting shall, at a minimum, briefly 

136



summarize the following:   

1. The work of RCD’s contractor to date and in the 

reporting year;  

2. The results of RCD’s monitoring activities;  

3. The net change, if any, of the approximate 

proportion of non-native and invasive plant cover, and 

the total approximate proportion of non-native and 

invasive plant cover;  

4. The net change, if any, of the approximate 

proportion and diversity of native plant cover, and the 

total approximate proportion of native plant cover;  

5. An update on RCD’s coordination with Caltrans; and  

6. The total budget used and the total remaining.  

   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands the 

day and year first above written and hereby represent having the 

authority to do so. 

 

SAN MATEO COUNTY RESOURCE  GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES  

CONSERVATION DISTRICT   DISTRICT  

 

Date: ___________________  Date: ______________________ 

 

By: _____________________ (name) By: ________________________ 

                   

 _____________________ (title)     GCSD Board President 

         

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By: _______________________ 

    Jonathan Wittwer, 

    GCSD General Counsel 

 

Attachments:  Exhibit A.1 

   Exhibit A.2 

 

DISTRIBUTION: GCSD Board  

General Manager 

Assistant General Manager 

Resource Conservation District 

 

137



138



-

ITEM #3

139



140



 
                            GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

504 Avenue A lhambra,  3 r d  F loor    P .  O .  Box  335   E l  Granada,  Ca l i fo rn ia   94018 
Te lephone:  (650)  726-7093   Facs imi le :  (650)  726-7099   E -mai l :  gsd@granada.ca.gov  

 
 
  

 AGENDA MEMORANDUM
 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Chuck Duffy, General Manager 

Subject: Agreement with Quiet River Surveying for the Districts Burnham Strip Parcel 

Date: February 15, 2018 

 
At our December 14, 2017 board meeting, your Board approved an agreement with Kikuchi + 
Kankel Design Group for the development of preliminary conceptual designs for the District’s 
Burnham Strip parcel.  In the process of gathering data for the proposed design work, we 
ascertained that the previous survey conducted as a part of the SAM Wet Weather Storage 
project did not include the area of the ad-hoc parking lot, nor the remainder of the parcel moving 
southeast to Coronado Road.  The attached proposal will therefore provide for field surveying 
(topo and property lines) and the preparation of a base CAD map for the remainder of the parcel, 
so that the District will have a complete survey of the property to be used for the preparation of 
the conceptual park designs.  I would recommend that your Board approve the proposal from 
Quiet River Land Services. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

141



 

January 25, 2018 

 

Mr. Chuck Duffy, Principal 

DUDEK  

750 Second Street  

Encinitas, CA 92024 

T: (760) 479-4125  C: (760) 522-4419 

 

Professional Services Agreement 

 

RE: Proposal for Surveying and Topographic Mapping of the Existing Conditions on 

specified portions of the Burnham Strip of that certain Record of Survey Map recorded at 

Page 36 LSM Page 4, being the Lands of Granada Sanitary District, in EL Granada, CA., 

San Mateo County APN: 047-262-010. 

 

Dear Mr. Duffy,  

 

Thank you for calling on Quiet River Land Services, Inc. (QRLS) for the surveying and 

mapping project on portions of the Burnham Strip as described above.  As discussed via 

our phone conversation, I have done some initial parcel research, reviewed the Record of 

Survey Map and the previously prepared Topographic map, viewed the project condition 

via Google Earth Street View, and have prepared this proposal for your review. 

 

It is my understanding that the goal of this survey is to perform a design-grade Existing 

Conditions Topographic Survey and scale digital topographic map focused on the gravel 

parking area and the general perimeter of the brushy/willow area southerly from the 

parking lot as generally depicted on the attached Limits of Survey Exhibit.  

 

Please review the Scope of Work listed below to be sure it includes all the items you 

want to have determined and evaluated.  Please feel free to discuss it with your various 

other design team members to insure it covers all that will be required.  If anything has 

been left out or is not correct please let me know so I can revise it. 

 

1.) Scope of Work:  

A.)  Office:  Property (Lot) Boundary Research and Computations.  QRLS will 

compute the relevant math related to the Burnham Strip Parcel from the Record of Survey 

Map and develop the mathematical location of the existing various parcel monuments, 

Lot lines and property corners.  These computations will be utilized by the field crew for 

use in the survey work as well as in the mapping phase for your project. 

 

 

142



 

B.)  Field Survey:  Search and Check any Monuments:  QRLS field crew will come to 

the property, perform an initial search to find the existing, relevant property monuments 

which we are hoping still exist at and around the Subject Parcel.  

   

C.) The Topographic Survey will include the existing topographic conditions of the 

Survey Limits outlined in red and also in the blue outlined areas shown on the Exhibit.  

That survey will include topographic features over and across those areas, slopes, grades, 

tops/toes of hills or ditches, edge of pavement, edge of brush, various hardscapes and 

surfaces, significant landscape and trees, visible utilities like fire hydrants, utility poles, 

guy wires, manholes, drain inlets, gas meters, water meters, telephone service risers, 

sewer clean-outs, driveways, retaining walls, any curb and gutter, mailboxes and any 

other significant features found on or around the parcel.   

 

Included in the this proposal are the services of an underground utility locating service 

who will intend to work along with our survey crews, or perform their work a day or so 

prior to the survey crew arriving on site.  Their focus will be Survey Limits Area #1, and 

not Area #2.  The survey will be performed to sufficient detail such that 2-foot interval 

contours can be easily and accurately generated/developed. 

 

C.)  Office Drafting, Computations/Analysis & Digital Mapping:  After the 

Topographic Field Survey work has been completed, the field survey data will be 

downloaded, processed and reviewed at our office.  The found property markers and 

monuments will be analyzed and QRLS will prepare a digital scale 2-foot contour 

interval topographic map depicting the features and items described above.  That map 

will be made available to the client in both .PDF for easy viewing and plotting and also in 

AutoCAD (.DWG file) for use in the design work. 

 

2.)  General Pricing Fees and Notes:   

 

a.)  Items 1. A, B & C (above):  Computations, Field Survey, Topographic Survey & Map   

    Field Survey as proposed above Two-person Field Survey Crew…...…………$ 3,500 

    Office: Research, Computations, Drafting of Topographic Map, PLS Review..$ 1,500 

                      Initial Survey - Topographic Map Fees.……. $  5,000  

 

b.) Underground Utility Locations and GPRS Scanning within the Survey Limits #1 as 

shown on the attached Exhibit…………………………………………………….$ 1,400  

        Total Fees…………………$ 6,400 

 

TERMS: Payment of Fees are due and payable at Net 30 from date of invoice which will 

be emailed after the delivery of the Map. Note that QRLS Does not participate in Pay-

When-Paid Arrangements.  This proposal does not include the services of a Record of 

Survey Map process IF site/project conditions should require such a map. 

 

143



 

 

3.)  Schedule of Completion:  The field survey work can be accomplished within 12 

working days from a Notice to Proceed.   Turn-around time for the Topographic Map is 

on or before 15 working days from completion of field survey work.  

 

4.)  Deliverables:  Deliverables will include: 

  

a.) Scale Topographic Map in Digital Format, and bond print if required 

 

5.)  Additional Work:  (CA Law Required Clause) In the event that additional or out-of-

scope work is required to complete the project, or site conditions or unforeseen 

circumstances are encountered that are substantially different than initial expectations, 

then the client will be notified by a representative of QRLS to inform of the issues, 

additional time and fees, if any, and to consult about a strategy for completion or 

abandonment of the project.  IF additional services are required then a written proposal 

for the additional fees may be provided, or a solution and agreement worked-out while in 

the field on the property or at the project.  

 

6.)  Cancellation of Professional Services Agreement:  (Required Clause) This 

Agreement can be cancelled at any point by either party to the agreement.   

However, if the client cancels the agreement the cancellation must be done by speaking 

directly with the undersigned surveyor, or in writing received by US mail or overnight 

delivery.   Sending an e-mail or leaving a voice mail message does not constitute 

notification of cancellation of agreement.  In addition, once the project has been approved 

by the client, the client is responsible to pay for any/ all fees and expenses accrued 

toward the project until completion or up until satisfactory notice of cancellation has been 

received.   

 

7.)  Limit of Liability:  There are limits to the amount of liability to which the client 

would be entitled in the event of an error, omission, actions, inactions, or mistake that has 

been determined by due process to be caused in whole or in part by Quiet River Land 

Services, Inc.  The monetary limit for any damages, losses, expenses and or fees is 

hereby limited to three times the sum of the contracted monetary value (Item 2: Fees) of 

the project.  

 

End  of  Proposal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

144



 

Chuck, I hope I have covered all the features you require.  If you have any questions, 

please do not hesitate to call.  If you wish to proceed with the survey please sign below 

and return the signed copy.  

 

 

Quiet River Land Services, Inc is a fully licensed, insured and outfitted California 

Corporation.  We employ top-quality surveyors, drafters and staff.  We enjoy serving the 

land development industry and believe strongly in providing excellent teamwork and 

mapping services to our valued clients.  Should you ever have a question or a problem, 

please contact me directly. 

 

Respectfully, 

Quiet River Land Services Inc. 

 
Kevin M. McGuire 

President 

California Registered Professional Land Surveyor #6437 

kvnm@quiet-river.com 

 

 

 

AGENT For The Owners- Acceptance of Proposed Professional Services: 

 

I, the undersigned, being authorized agents for the land owners of the subject property 

identified above, have read and understand the foregoing proposal/Professional Services 

Agreement, and having the authority and permission to enter into binding contracts and 

as such hereby accept and agree to the Scope of Work, Terms of Payment and the other 

Agreement parameters as contained herein, and hereby grant permission for the survey 

crew members to enter onto the Subject property to perform this work. 

 

 

 

 

             

 Agent for the Owners:                                    Date 

 

145



 

146



-

ITEM #4

147



148



 
                            GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

504 Avenue A lhambra,  3 r d  F loor    P .  O .  Box  335   E l  Granada,  Ca l i fo rn ia   94018 
Te lephone:  (650)  726-7093   Facs imi le :  (650)  726-7099   E -mai l :  gsd@granada.ca.gov  

 
 
  

 AGENDA MEMORANDUM
 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Chuck Duffy, General Manager 

Subject: Ordinance Amending District Ordinance Code Sections 104 and 701 (01) (A) Related 
 to Sewer Connection Fees – Second Reading 

Date: February 15, 2018 

 
This ordinance was presented to your Board at our December board meeting, at which time the 
Board approved the first reading of the ordinance. A second reading is now required for final 
adoption and approval of the ordinance. 
 
This item is for the Board’s consideration of amendments to Sections 104 and 701(01)(A) of the 
District Ordinance Code, in light of state legislative amendments to the Accessory Dwelling Unit 
law (Government Code § 65852.2). In 2017, the state legislature amended the statute in a manner 
that affects the types of accessory dwelling units from which the District may collect residential 
connection charges. The attached Ordinance addresses these changes. In addition, this Ordinance 
takes advantage of the opportunity to review these sections of the District Ordinance Code to 
clarify other categories of structures that may qualify for a reduced residential connection charge. 
 
It is therefore my recommendation that your Board: 

1. Read the Ordinance title and waive by motion the second reading of the Ordinance. 
2. Approve and Adopt the Ordinance. 
3. Direct staff to publish the Ordinance in accordance with the Government Code. 

149



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DISTRICT ORDINANCE CODE  
RELATING TO SEWER CONNECTION CHARGES 

The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District ordains as follows:  

Section 1.  Section 104 of the Granada Community Services District Code is hereby amended to 
include the following definitions:  

(43) Auxiliary Structures. A detached non-habitable building without a kitchen whose use is 
incidental to the use of the main building on the parcel, such as a pool house, a cabana, a 
workshop, an art studio, etc.  

(44) Accessory Dwelling Unit.  An attached or a detached residential dwelling unit which 
provides complete independent living facilities for one or more persons. It shall include 
permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation on the same parcel as 
the single-family dwelling is situated. An accessory dwelling unit also includes the following: 

(A) An efficiency unit, as defined in Section 17958.1 of the Health and Safety Code. 

(B) A manufactured home, as defined in Section 18007 of the Health and Safety Code. 

Section 2. Section 701 (01) (A) of the Granada Community Services District Ordinance Code is 
hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 

(01) Charges by Type of Connection. 

(A) Residential Connections 

Effective July 1, 2001, the residential connection charge for connection to the sewer main system 
by a dwelling unit shall be $4,700.00 for each dwelling unit. The connection charge shall be 
reduced for the following structures: 

(i) For auxiliary structures, as defined in Section 104(43), there shall be no 
residential connection charge. 

(ii) There shall be no residential connection charge for an accessory dwelling unit that 
meets all of the following criteria:  

a. The parcel for the accessory dwelling unit is zoned to allow single-family or 
multifamily use;  

b. The parcel includes a proposed or existing single-family dwelling;  

150



ORDINANCE AMENDING GCSD CODE SECTIONS 104 and 701 

Page 2 

c. The accessory dwelling unit is created entirely within the footprint of an 
existing structure (e.g., adding no new square footage to the total developed 
floor area on the parcel); and 

d. The parcel contains no other accessory dwelling unit.  

(iii) The District shall charge fifty percent (50%) of the single-family residential 
connection charge for an accessory dwelling unit not described in subdivision 
(01)(A)(ii).   

(iv) When fewer than the maximum number of dwelling units allowed under the 
applicable land use regulations are built on a site in a R-3/ S-3 zone and each 
dwelling unit is less than 750 square feet, the residential connection charge for 
each dwelling unit shall be reduced by the percentage of dwelling units built out 
of the maximum number of dwelling units allowed. 

 
Section 3.  CEQA COMPLIANCE 
 
This Ordinance is not a project subject to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15378, subdivision (b).  In the event that this Ordinance is 
found to be a project under CEQA, it is subject to the CEQA exemption contained in Section 
15061, subdivision (b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines, because it can be seen with certainty that 
there is no possibility that it may have a significant effect on the environment.  This Ordinance is 
also subject to the CEQA exemption contained in Section 15307 of the CEQA Guidelines 
because it consists of actions taken by regulatory agencies as authorized by state law or local 
Ordinance to assure the maintenance, restoration, or enhancement of natural resources where the 
regulatory process involves procedures for protection of the environment. 
 
Section 4.  SEVERANCE CLAUSE 
 
The Board declares that each section, sub-section, paragraph, sub-paragraph, sentence, clause 
and phrase of this Ordinance is severable and independent of every other section, sub-section, 
paragraph, sub-paragraph, sentence, clause and phrase of this Ordinance.  If any section, sub-
section, paragraph, sub-paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held invalid, 
the Board declares that it would have adopted the remaining provisions of this Ordinance 
irrespective of the portion held invalid, and further declares its express intent that the remaining 
portions of this Ordinance should remain in effect after the invalid portion has been eliminated. 
 
Section 5.  Upon adoption, this Ordinance shall be entered into the minutes of the District Board, 
shall be published one time in a newspaper published in the County of San Mateo, and shall be 
effective at the end of the week of publication or 30 days after the date of final passage, 
whichever is later. 
 
  

151



ORDINANCE AMENDING GCSD CODE SECTIONS 104 and 701 

Page 3 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was regularly introduced at a meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Granada Community Services District held on the 18th day of January 2018, and 
thereafter passed and adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Granada Community 
Services District on the 15th day of February 2018, by the following vote: 
 

AYES: and in favor thereof:   
NOES: Members:   
ABSENT: Members:  
ABSTAIN: Members:  

 
 
Signed Attest: 
 
 
__________________________ _________________________________ 
Leonard Woren, President  Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 
  
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
WITTWER PARKIN LLP, General Counsel  
 

152



-

ITEM #5

153



154



 
                            GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

504 Avenue A lhambra,  3 r d  F loor    P .  O .  Box  335   E l  Granada,  Ca l i fo rn ia   94018 
Te lephone:  (650)  726-7093   Facs imi le :  (650)  726-7099   E -mai l :  gsd@granada.ca.gov  

 
 
  

 AGENDA MEMORANDUM
 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Chuck Duffy, General Manager 

Subject: GCSD FY 2017/18 Budget Amendment 
 Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) Additional Funds Request 

Date: February 15, 2018 

 
Your board has previously approved two prior requests for additional funds from SAM, one for 
the expanded Intertie Pipeline System repairs in October 2017 for an additional $179,614, and 
another for the repair of the main power feed failure to the SAM treatment plant in December 
2017 for $128,380, for a total additional funds request of $307,994.  As shown on the attached 
agenda memo from SAM General Manager Beverli Marshall, SAM is again requesting 
additional funds for budget overages and additions to fund additional staffing for SAM, 
additional legal costs, settlement of the Administrative Civil Liability Complaint related to the 
SAM IPS spill of February 2017, and additional equipment repair at the treatment plant.  Two 
versions of the additional funding request were approved for circulation to the SAM JPA 
Member Agencies at the January 8, 2018 SAM Special Board Meeting.  SAM is therefore 
requesting that GCSD fund a total of $414,104 (based upon the Version 1 request) for FY 
2017/18 as our share of their total additional funding request.  This would require additional 
funds of $106,110 from GCSD above and beyond the previously approved $307,994 in 
additional funding.  Should your Board approve this request, I have attached the requisite 
amendment to the GCSD FY 2017/18 Budget, as well as the accompanying Budget Resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2018- ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 3RD AMENDMENT TO THE 
GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 BUDGET   
 

The Board of Directors of the Granada Community Services District (“District”) finds and 
determines as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 61110, subdivision (a), requires that “On or 
before September 1 of each year or, for districts using two one-year budgets or a biennial budget, 
every other year, the board of directors shall adopt a final budget that conforms to generally 
accepted accounting and budgeting procedures for special districts.”;  

 
WHEREAS, following the required Public Hearing, the Granada Community Services District 
adopted its Fiscal Year 2017/18 Budget on July 20, 2017; 
 
WHEREAS, the GCSD Fiscal Year 2017/18 Budget was previously amended at the October 19, 
2017 district board meeting to provide for additional funding for the repair and replacement of 
Segments 1, 2, and 3 of the Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) IPS Force Main 
Replacement in the amount of $179,614; 
 
WHEREAS, the GCSD Fiscal Year 2017/18 Budget was again amended at the December 14, 
2017 district board meeting to provide for additional funding for the repair and replacement of 
the SAM Wastewater Treatment Plant electrical system bus bar/duct emergency failure in the 
amount of $128,380; 
 
WHEREAS, GCSD has therefore previously approved additional funding to SAM for Fiscal 
Year 2017/18 totaling $307,994; 
 
WHEREAS, at the SAM board meeting of January 8, 2018, the SAM Board approved circulating 
a request for funds totaling $414,104 for FY 2017/18 as GCSD’s share of funding for additional 
SAM costs, which represents an additional $106,110 above and beyond the previously approved 
funding to SAM.  The additional funds will be used for added staffing for SAM, additional legal 
costs, settlement of the Administrative Civil Liability Complaint fines related to the SAM IPS 
spill of February 2017, and additional equipment repair at the treatment plant;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Granada 
Community Services District does hereby adopt and approve an amendment to the GCSD Fiscal 
Year 2017/18 Budget by adding a line item to allocate $106,110 of GCSD reserve funds towards 
the January 8, 2018 SAM Request for Additional Funds; 
 
  

163



Resolution Amending the GCSD FY 2107/18 Budget 
SAM Additional Funds Request 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this budget amendment shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption of this Resolution. 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a special meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the District held on the 15th day of February 2018, by the following 
vote: 
 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members:   

 

NOES, Members:  

 

ABSENT, Members:  

 
ABSTAIN, Members:    

 
 
              
        _______________________________ 
       Leonard Woren, Board President 
 
 
COUNTERSIGNED:  
 
       
_____________________________ 
Delia Comito, Secretary 

164



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 SEWER DISTRICT BUDGET

FY 2017/18
SEWER - OPERATING REVENUES Budget

1 . Property Tax Allocation-Sewer split between sewer and parks) $200,000
2 . Annual Sewer Service Charges 1,282,000$   
3 . Reim. from A.D. - Salary and Overhead $30,000
4 . Recology of the Coast Franchise Fee $32,000
5 . Miscellaneous $2,000

TOTAL REVENUES $1,546,000

Budget Revenue Assumptions:
1 . 3,200 ERU's of sewer service charge at $402 per ERU
2 . Property Tax Revenue now allocated between Sewer

and Parks and Recreation departments

Page 1 of 4 165



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 SEWER DISTRICT BUDGET

SEWER - EXPENDITURES
FY 2017/18

SEWER - OPERATING EXPENSES Budget
1 . SAM General (Treatment and Admin.) $955,139
2 . SAM Collections $239,954
3 . Lateral Repairs $40,000
4 . CCTV $20,000
5 . Pet Waste Stations $1,000
6 . Plant Shortfall Debt Service (COP) $0

Sub-Total Operations Expenditures $1,256,093

FY 2017/18
SEWER - ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATING EXPENSES Budget
1 . Accounting $30,000
2 . Auditing $15,000
3 . Copier Lease $7,500
4 . Directors' Compensation $11,000
5 . Education & Travel Reimbursement $2,000
6 . Employee Salaries $150,000
7 . Employee Medical, Payroll Taxes, and Retirement $60,000
8 . Engineering Services (General) $20,000
9 . Insurance $6,000

10 . Legal Services $65,000
11 . Memberships $9,000
12 . Newsletter $2,500
13 . Office Lease $52,000
14 . Office Maintenance and Repairs $2,500
15 . Office Supplies $6,000
16 . Professional Services - Other $65,000
17 . Publications & Notices $10,000
18 . Utilities $10,000
19 . Video Taping of Board Meetings $3,500
20 . Computers $2,000
21 . Miscellaneous $7,000

Sub-Total Administration Expenditures $536,000

SEWER - TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES $1,792,093

SEWER - OPERATING NET TO/(FROM) RESERVES ($246,093)

Page 2 of 4 166



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 SEWER DISTRICT BUDGET

FY 2017/18
SEWER - NON-OPERATING REVENUES Budget

1 . Interest on Reserves $28,400
2 . Connection Fees $47,000
3 . SAM Refund from Prior Year Allocation $5,000
4 . Repayment from Assessment District-Current FY $127,000
5 . ERAF Refund from Prior Year $250,000

TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES $457,400

Budget Revenue Assumptions:
1 . 0.82% Interest on average yearly reserve
2 . 10 Connections at $4700 per connection

SEWER - CAPITAL PROJECTS AND RESERVE FUND BALANCE

FY 2017/18
SEWER - CAPITAL PROJECTS Budget
1 . Mainline System Repairs $10,000
2 . Medio Creek Crossing Sewer Re-alignment $350,000
3 . Sewer Service Charge Rate and Reserve Study $35,000
4 . SAM - Recycled Water Project $15,000
5 . SAM - Capital Maintenance/Infrastructure Budget (orig. $394,310)* $573,924
6 . SAM - Repair of Treatment Plant Power System Feed (unbudgeted)** $128,380
7 . SAM - Addt'l. Funds Request-staffing, legal, ACL, equipment repair*** $106,110

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS $1,218,414

* As amended at the 10-19-2017 GCSD board meeting
** As amended at the 12-14-2017 GCSD board meeting
*** As amended at the 02-15-2018 GCSD board meeting

SEWER - CAPITAL RESERVE FUND BALANCE
1 . Beginning Balance on July 1 $4,326,000
2 . Capital Projects ($1,218,414)
3 . Transfer (to)/from Operating Budget ($246,093)
4 . Transfer (to)/from Non-Operating Revenues $457,400

TOTAL RESERVE AT END OF FISCAL YEAR $3,318,893

Page 3 of 4 167



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2017/18 PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT BUDGET

FY 2017/18
PARKS AND RECREATION - OPERATING REVENUES Budget
1 . Property Tax Allocation-Parks (split between sewer and parks) $400,000
2 . Miscellaneous $0

TOTAL REVENUES $400,000

PARKS AND RECREATION - OPERATING EXPENDITURES
1 . Projects (Purchase of Impink Burnham Strip Property in 16/17) $100,000
2 . County staff time $5,000
3 . RCD $5,000
4 . Reimbursement to Half Moon Bay per Property Tax Agreement $20,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $130,000

NET TO/(FROM) PARKS AND RECREATION RESERVE $270,000

PARKS AND RECREATION - CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
1 . Beginning Balance on July 1 $193,800
2 . Purchase of Property ($130,000)
3 . Transfer (to)/from Operating Revenues $270,000

PARKS AND RECREATION RESERVE AT FYE $333,800

Page 4 of 4 168



-

ITEM #6

169



170



 
SEWER AUTHORITY MID-COASTSIDE  

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Regular Board Meeting 7:00 PM, Monday, February 12, 2018 

        SAM Administration Building, 1000 N. Cabrillo Highway, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Roll Call Chair: Jim Blanchard (GCSD) 

Vice-Chair: Dr. Deborah Penrose (HMB) 

Secretary: Kathryn Slater-Carter (MWSD) 

Treasurer: Scott Boyd (MWSD) 

Director: Leonard Woren (GCSD) 

Director: Deborah Ruddock (HMB) 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT / ORAL COMMUNICATION 
 

3. CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION (Items discussed in Closed Session comply with the 

Ralph M. Brown Act.) 
 

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

Pursuant to Government Code 54957 – Title: General Counsel  
 

B. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

Pursuant to Government Code 54957 – Title: General Manager 

 

4. CONVENE IN OPEN SESSION (Report Out on Closed Session Items) 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT / ORAL COMMUNICATION 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA (Consent items are considered routine and will be approved / 

adopted by a single motion and vote unless a request for removal for discussion or 

explanation is received from the public or Board.) 
 

A. Approve Minutes of December 11, 2017, and January 22, 2018, Regular Board 

Meetings (Attachment) 
 

B. Approve Disbursements for February 12, 2018 (Attachment) 
 

7. REGULAR BUSINESS (The Board will discuss, seek public input, and possibly take 

action on the following items.) 
 

A. Presentation of First Flush 2017 by Julian Carroll of San Mateo County Resource 

171



Conservation District 
 

B. Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Signers at First National Bank of Northern California 

for Electronic Banking Agreements (Attachment) 
 

C. Authorize Change Order #1 to Construction Contract with Bay Pacific Pipelines, Inc. 

for the Force Main Repair Project (Attachment) 

 

D. Authorize Change Order #2 to Construction Contract with Bay Pacific Pipelines, Inc. 

for the Force Main Repair Project (Attachment) 

 

E. Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Non-Domestic Wastewater Discharge 

Agreement with Browning-Ferris Industries of California, Inc., for the Discharge of 

Leachate Water from Ox Mountain Landfill into the SAM Sanitary Sewer System at a 

Designated Location (Attachment) 
 

F. Discuss History of Relationship Between SAM General Manager and Member Agency 

Managers for the JPA Functions and the Contract Collection Services and SAM 

Directors’ Responsibilities 

 

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

No Attachment 
 

9. ATTORNEY’S REPORT (Attachment) 
 

10. DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Attachment) 
 

11. TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD CONSIDERATION (Attachment) 
 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 Upcoming Regular Board Meetings: February 26 and March 12, 2018 
 

The meeting will end by 9:00 p.m. unless extended by board vote. 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

This agenda contains a brief description of each item to be considered. Those wishing to 

address the Board on any matter not listed on the Agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the 

Board, may do so during the Public Comment section of the Agenda and will have a maximum 

of three minutes to discuss their item. Those wishing to speak on a matter listed on the 

Agenda will be called forward at the appropriate time. 
 

Any writing that is a public record and relates to an agenda item for an open session of a 

regular meeting, that is distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, is 

available for public inspection, during normal business hours, at the Authority’s office. 
 

172



MINUTES 

SAM BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

January 22, 2018 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Blanchard called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. at the SAM Administration 

Building, located at 1000 N. Cabrillo Highway, Half Moon Bay, CA 94019 
 

A. Roll Call 

Directors Kowalczyk (for Ruddock), Blanchard, Woren, Slater-Carter, Penrose, and 

Boyd were present. Also present were General Manager Marshall, Engineering & 

Construction Contracts Manager Prathivadi, Supervisor of Treatment/Field Operations 

Costello, and Supervisor of Admin Services Matthews.  
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT/ORAL COMMUNICATION 

Carlos Mendez, SAM employee, addressed the Board regarding the General Manager’s 

performance evaluation scheduled to be discussed in Closed Session. He expressed 

his disappointment regarding the comments made by a Half Moon Bay city council 

member who called the SAM General Manager abysmal and irresponsible. He stated 

that in the 2 years that the General Manager has been with SAM, he has never met 

anyone as hard working as her. He also stated that she is trying to make SAM a better 

entity for the entire community and has done so with great praise, not only from himself 

but other SAM employees as well. He went on to say that since the General Manager 

has been with SAM she has increased the employee morale and she has been the 

hardest working manager he has seen in the 5 years he has been with SAM. He 

continued to say that she is very intelligent and forceful when she needs to be, and he 

believes that the SAM Board has lost sight of the quality of person that they have at 

their disposal. He believes that the Board is hindering her performance as the General 

Manager and he believes in her and her ability to steer the ship right. Chair Blanchard 

thanked him for his comments. 
 

Director Slater-Carter read a statement that she was asked to read to the Board from an 

employee who asked to remain anonymous. The letter expressed the concerns the 

employee has in the Board’s unprofessionalism during SAM Board meetings, possible 

loss of employment, the Boards bad decision making, replacing uninterested Board 

members with others who have the best interest of SAM at heart, and how SAM staff 

will continue to work together to do what is best for SAM.  After reading the statement, 

Director Slater-Carter thanked the SAM staff for their good work and trying to do what is 

best to keep SAM running. 
  

3. CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION (Items discussed in Closed Session comply 

with the Ralph M. Brown Act.) 

173



Minutes 
SAM Regular Board Meeting 
January 22, 2018 
 
 

 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of Section 

54959.9: (San Francisco Bay Regional Quality Control Board v. Sewer 

Authority Mid0Coastside, Complaint R2-2017-1024) 
         

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 

Pursuant to Government Code Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of Section 

54956.9: (Half Moon Bay v. Granada CSD, Montara WSD & Sewer Authority 

Mid-Coastside) 
         

C. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Pursuant to Government Code 54957 – Title: General Manager 
 

The Board went into closed session at 7:09 p.m. 
 

4. CONVENE IN OPEN SESSION (Report Out on Closed Session Items) 

The Board reconvened into open session at 7:14 p.m. Chair Blanchard reported that 

there was no reportable action. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT/ORAL COMMUNICTION  
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA (Consent items are considered routine and will be approved / 

adopted by a single motion and vote unless a request for removal for discussion or 

explanation is received from the public or Board.) 
 

General Manager Marshall mentioned that she had a request to pull the minutes of 

December 11, 2017, because there was a correction that needed to be made. Both 

Directors Kowalczyk and Penrose asked to pull item 6B for further discussion. 
 

A. Approve Minutes of December 7, 2017, Special Board Meeting, and January 8, 

2018 Regular Board Meeting. 
 

Following a brief discussion, Director Kowalczyk moved and Director Woren seconded 

the motion to approve the minutes of December 7, 2018 Special Meeting, and January 

8, 2018 Regular Board Meeting. 
 

Kowalczyk/Woren/6 Ayes/0 Noes/1 Abstain (Kowalczyk – 2 Votes). The motion passed. 
  

B. Approve Disbursements for January 22, 2018 
 

Director Penrose stated that the City of Half Moon Bay had not been provided with 

sufficient back-up documentation showing the tasks that General Counsel Nelson 

174



Minutes 
SAM Regular Board Meeting 
January 22, 2018 
 
 
performed during December 2017. General Manager Marshall stated that she originally 

sent the requested details out to the City on Friday, January 19 and again that morning, 

January 22. Both Directors Kowalczyk and Penrose said they did not yet receive the 

information. A hard copy of the information that been in the e-mail was provided to 

Director Penrose at the meeting.  
 

Director Kowalczyk suggested approving the disbursements for January 22, 2018 and 

withhold the check for General Counsel Nelson’s services for $3,768 until the 

documentation can be reviewed. Director Kowalczyk moved and Director Penrose 

seconded the motion to approve the disbursements for January 22, 2018, with the 

exception of the check to Bold, Polisner, Maddow, Nelson & Judson. Director Boyd 

noted his concern of holding up payments to people who have already done work for 

SAM and stated that it was poor practice. He also stated that he would like to see this 

paid as soon as possible. 
 

Kowalczyk/Penrose/8 Ayes/0 Noes. The motion passed. 
 

C. Receive Monthly Budget Report for Period Ending December 31, 2017 
 

Following a brief discussion, the Board agreed to receive the monthly budget report for 

the period ending December 31, 2017.  
 

7.  REGULAR BUSINESS (The Board will discuss, seek public input, and possibly take 

                       action to approve the following items.)   
   

A. Establish Standing Committees, Set Times and Places for Meetings, and 

Appoint Committee Members 
 

General Manager Marshall reviewed the staff report recommended that the Board of 

Directors establish the Board Operations, Finance, and Public Outreach standing 

committees, set the time and place of the committee meetings, and assign at least two 

directors to each committee. A discussion ensued. Director Woren stated that he 

preferred when there is one member from each agency on each committee. Director 

Boyd recommended that the finance committee be an Ad-Hoc committee that is tied to 

the budget cycle. Director Slater-Carter recommended that the committee include the 

Treasurer. Director Boyd stated that he would like to have an alternate for the finance 

committee in case a regular committee member cannot make a meeting. Director 

Slater-Carter volunteered to be the alternate on the finance committee. 

 

All Board members concurred that all of the committees will be Ad-Hoc committees 

175



Minutes 
SAM Regular Board Meeting 
January 22, 2018 
 
 
instead of standing committees. The Ad-Hoc committees are as follows: 
 

Finance Committee: Directors Boyd, Ruddock, and Woren. Director Slater-Carter as 

an Alternate 

Board Operations: Directors Slater-Carter, Blanchard, and Penrose 

Public Outreach: Directors Slater-Carter, Penrose, and Blanchard 
 

General Manager Marshall asked what the deliverables for each committee was to be.  

Direction was given to General Manager Marshall.  
   

B. Discuss General Budget Priorities for FY 2018/19 and Provide Direction 
 

After reviewing the staff report, General Manager Marshall recommended that the Board 

of Directors review its priorities for FY 2018/19, and discuss the impacts on the budget, 

and provide direction to staff. A discussion ensued. Director Slater-Carter stated that 

due to the given events of last year, the highest priority needs to be looking at 

maintenance, and setting maintenance and repair priorities. She also stated that the 

electrical system should be one of the highest priority items as it is a matter of health, 

safety, and operations. She suggested going back to the 2012-2013 electrical analysis 

and have the SAM engineer re-visit it and set the priority, as well as looking at who is 

doing the maintenance, and the long-term record accumulation of the maintenance that 

exists or doesn’t exist.  
 

Director Woren added, that one of the things that have hurt SAM has been the chronic 

problem of asking for new versions of reports instead of acting on reports that have 

already been done. Director Boyd commented that SAM does not need state of the art 

technology, but what is fast and effective for the price. He also stated we should be 

aware of what state of the art is. He continued to say he would like to see an increase in 

inspections schedules and more things recommended for repair and replacement. 

Director Kowalczyk stated that SAM needs to consider building, over time, a 

redundancy here and other areas to do preventive maintenance. He also stated the 

other thing that stood out to him in the principles are the topics referring to staff, and its 

important that staff has the training and tools to do great at their jobs. Director Slater-

Carter suggested a future project for SAM would be to look into more wet weather 

storage facilities.  
 

Following the discussion, Director Boyd emphasized the importance of staff discussing 

the budget with the member agency managers. 
 

George Long, SAM employee, addressed the Board regarding current projects, SAM 

176



Minutes 
SAM Regular Board Meeting 
January 22, 2018 
 
 
being understaffed, inflow and infiltration (I & I) problems, and the need for a tank on the 

plant property. Chair Blanchard thanked him for his input. 
 

C. Discuss Infrastructure Plan Projects for FY 2018/19 and Provide Direction 
 

After reviewing the staff report, General Manager Marshall recommended that the Board 

of Directors review the list of proposed projects for FY 2018/19, discuss impacts on the 

budget, and provide direction to staff. Director Penrose stated that she would like to get 

feedback from the member agency managers before finalizing anything.  A discussion 

ensued. Director Woren stated that he would like to get information from the SAM 

contract sewer engineer as to which items have a higher priority. 
 

Director Boyd moved and Director Slater-Carter seconded the motion to extend the 

meeting for 10 minutes. 
 

Boyd/Slater-Carter/8 Ayes/0 Noes. The motion passed. 
 

D. Review Request for Proposals from Half Moon Bay for Sewer Collection 

System Maintenance Services and Authorize 
 

Kathryn Slater-Carter suggested that the Board not review the staff report and have 

SAM go ahead and respond to the request for proposal from the City of Half Moon Bay 

for their sewer collection system maintenance services. Director Boyd concurred. 
 

John Szabo, resident of Half Moon Bay and SAM employee, addressed the Board 

regarding the positive benefits of having SAM continue to provide the collections 

services to MWSD and GCSD, stating the City of Half Moon Bay has already made up 

their minds. He spoke about training and experience, environmental source control, 

cleaning lines on a biennial basis, SSO response time, and the City of Half Moon Bay’s 

lack of responding to communications with SAM. Chair Blanchard thanked John for his 

comments. 
 

Director Slater-Carter stated that since she has been on the SAM Board, she has 

noticed that SAM has been operating on old, not up to date contracts and updated 

contracts would force the member agencies to review the level of service that they want. 
 

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 

A. Receive Manager’s Report for December 2017 
 

Director Kowalczyk requested staff inform them, through e-mail, the last time the Half 

Moon Bay meters (owned by SAM) were inspected. Chair Blanchard requested the 

177



Minutes 
SAM Regular Board Meeting 
January 22, 2018 
 
 
Manager’s report for December 2017, be discussed at the next Board meeting due to 

time constraints. 
 

9.   ATTORNEY’S REPORT - NONE 
 

10.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT - NONE  
 

11. TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD CONSIDERATION - NONE 
  

12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chair Blanchard adjourned the meeting at 9:11 p.m.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, Approved By: 

 

     

Kathy Matthews Board Secretary 

Recording Secretary  

178



MGD %

The City of Half Moon Bay 0.719 57.9%

Granada Community Services District 0.288 23.2%

Montara Water and Sanitary District 0.235 18.9%

Total 1.242 100.0%

Attachment A

Flow Distribution Report Summary For December 2017

The summary of the ADF information is as follows:

The daily flow report figures for the month of December 2017
have been converted to an Average

Daily Flow (ADF) for each Member Agency.
The results are attached for your review.

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

0.000

0.200

0.400

0.600

0.800

1.000

1.200

1.400

1.600

1
2
/1
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/3
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/4
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/5
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/6
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/7
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/8
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/9
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
0
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
1
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
2
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
3
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
4
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
5
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
6
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
7
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
8
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/1
9
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
0
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
1
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
2
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
3
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
4
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
5
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
6
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
7
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
8
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/2
9
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/3
0
/2
0
1
7

1
2
/3
1
/2
0
1
7

R
ai
n
, I
n
ch
es

M
G
D

Sewer Authority Mid‐Coastside
Monthly Flow Distribution Report, December 2017

HMB GCSD MWSD Plant Rain, inches 179



D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
7

T
o

ta
l

H
M

B
G

C
S

D
M

W
S

D
S

A
M

 
R

oo
ts

0
0

0
0

0
G

re
as

e
0

0
0

0
0

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
l

1
1

0
0

0
Ja

n 
- 

17
16

,6
50

16
,1

44
11

,8
37

44
,6

31
   

 
8.

5
W

et
 W

ea
th

er
0

0
0

0
0

F
eb

 -
 1

7
12

,2
16

4,
86

6
11

,5
31

28
,6

13
   

 
5.

4
O

th
er

0
0

0
0

0
M

ar
 -

 1
7

15
,3

47
11

,6
67

10
,1

33
37

,1
47

   
 

7.
0

T
o

ta
l

1
1

0
0

0
A

pr
 -

 1
7

13
,1

01
11

,5
88

11
,4

60
36

,1
49

   
 

6.
8

10
0%

M
ay

 -
 1

7
12

,0
44

12
,4

83
9,

54
7

34
,0

74
   

 
6.

5
Ju

ne
 -

 1
7

18
,4

11
17

,3
17

8,
56

7
44

,2
95

   
 

8.
4

12
 M

o
n

th
 M

o
vi

n
g

 T
o

ta
l

Ju
ly

 -
 1

7
28

,2
76

20
,2

90
6,

36
8

54
,9

34
   

 
10

.4
A

ug
 -

 1
7

21
,7

69
22

,4
65

20
,0

44
64

,2
78

   
 

12
.2

T
o

ta
l

H
M

B
G

C
S

D
M

W
S

D
S

A
M

 
S

ep
 -

 1
7

18
,7

10
17

,4
19

11
,3

47
47

,4
76

   
 

9.
0

R
oo

ts
0

0
0

0
0

O
ct

 -
 1

7
19

,3
36

11
,8

71
14

,6
96

45
,9

03
   

 
8.

7
G

re
as

e
1

1
0

0
0

N
ov

 -
 1

7
17

,8
54

23
,0

41
9,

97
8

50
,8

73
   

 
9.

6
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l
6

1
0

1
4

D
ec

 -
 1

7
31

,6
61

14
,1

03
9,

81
0

55
,5

74
   

 
10

.5
W

et
 W

ea
th

er
2

2
0

0
0

O
th

er
4

1
1

2
0

A
nn

ua
l f

t
22

5,
37

5
18

3,
25

4
13

5,
31

8
54

3,
94

7
T

o
ta

l
13

5
1

3
4

38
%

8%
23

%
31

%
A

nn
ua

l M
i.

42
.7

34
.7

25
.6

10
3.

0

R
ep

o
rt

ab
le

 S
S

O
s

T
o

ta
l

H
M

B
G

C
S

D
M

W
S

D
S

A
M

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
17

1
1

0
0

0
12

 M
on

th
 M

ov
in

g 
T

ot
al

13
5

1
3

4

S
S

O
s 

/ Y
ea

r 
/ 1

00
 M

ile
s

T
o

ta
l

H
M

B
G

C
S

D
M

W
S

D
S

A
M

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
17

1.
0

2.
7

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

12
 M

on
th

 M
ov

in
g 

T
ot

al
12

.4
13

.5
3.

0
11

.1
54

.8
C

at
eg

or
y 

1
5.

7
8.

1
0.

0
3.

7
27

.4
C

at
eg

or
y 

2
1.

9
2.

7
0.

0
0.

0
13

.7
C

at
eg

or
y 

3
4.

8
2.

7
3.

0
7.

4
13

.7

M
ile

s 
of

 S
ew

er
s

10
4.

5
37

.0
33

.2
27

.0
7.

3
35

.4
%

31
.8

%
25

.8
%

7.
0%

R
ep

or
ta

bl
e 

N
um

be
r 

of
 S

.S
.O

.'s

12
 m

on
th

 r
ol

lin
g 

N
um

be
r

N
um

be
r 

of
 S

.S
.O

's

Attachment  C
S

ew
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 M
id

-C
o

as
ts

id
e

M
on

th
ly

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

S
ys

te
m

 A
ct

iv
ity

/S
S

O
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

R
ep

or
t, 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

17

12
 M

o
n

th
 R

o
lli

n
g

 T
o

ta
l S

ew
er

 C
le

an
in

g
 S

u
m

m
ar

y

M
o

n
th

H
M

B
G

C
S

D
M

W
S

D
T

o
ta

l  
F

ee
t

T
o

ta
l 

M
ile

s

N
um

be
r 

of
 S

.S
.O

.'s
 /Y

ea
r/

10
0 

M
ile

s

0510152025303540

M
o

vi
n

g
 1

2 
M

o
n

th
 S

S
O

 T
o

ta
ls

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 F
eb

ru
ar

y
20

08

M
ov

in
g 

12
 M

on
th

 T
ot

al
s

``
`

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

1
2
 M

o
n
th
 M

o
vi
n
g 
SS
O
 T
o
ta
ls
 T
h
ro
u
gh

 D
e
ce
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
7

A
ll 
S.
S.
O
.'s

C
at
 1

C
at
 2

C
at
 3

180



181



182



-

ITEM #7

183



184



 
 GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
Minutes 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
SPECIAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS 

 
January 18, 2018  

 
CALL SPECIAL MEETING TO ORDER  
The special meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL  
President Jim Blanchard, Vice President Leonard Woren, Director Matthew Clark, 
Director David Seaton, and Director Barbara Dye.   
 
Staff: General Manager Chuck Duffy, District Counsel Bill Parkin, and Assistant General 
Manager Delia Comito (in open session only). 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
None. 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 1.   Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Gov. Code Section 
54956.9(d)(1)).  Administrative Liability Complaint R2-2017-1024 issued by the 
San Francisco Regional Water Quality Control Board.  
 

2. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation (Gov. Code Section 
§54956.9(d)(1)).  

 City of Half Moon Bay v. Granada Community Services District and Montara Water   
 and Sanitary District (RPI, Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside) - San Mateo Superior   
 Court Case No. 17CIV03092. 
 

3. Conference with Labor Negotiator Chuck Duffy and Board of Directors 
(Government Code Section 54957.6). 
Agency designated representative:  Chuck Duffy  
Unrepresented employee: Assistant Administrator.    

 
4. Conference with Labor Negotiator Chuck Duffy and Board of Directors 

(Government Code Section 54957.6). 
Agency designated representative:  Chuck Duffy  
Unrepresented employee: Assistant General Manager.    
  

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
There was no reportable action from Closed Session. 
 
 
 

185



Board of Directors Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 18, 2018 

ADJOURN SPECIAL MEETING 
 
CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:55 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL  
 
GENERAL PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
None. 
 
ACTION AGENDA 
1. Consideration of Ordinance Amending Sections 104 and 701(01)(A) of the 

District Ordinance Code Regarding Accessory Dwelling Unit and Auxiliary 
Structure Sewer Connection Charges (First Reading). 
District Counsel Parkin indicated that the proposed changes to the District Code are 
to bring the District in compliance with State legislation taking effect this year. 

ACTION: Director Clark moved to waive the first reading of the Ordinance and to 
approve the Ordinance subject to a second reading.  (Clark/Dye).  Approved 5-0. 

 
The Board directed staff to prepare a letter opposing SB-831, which will impose 
additional fee restrictions on sewer agencies for ADU’s. 

     
2. Consideration of Appointment Process for Park Advisory Committee 

Members. 
The Board held a discussion regarding the application form, appointment process, 
and current committee seats.  Staff was directed to revise the GPAC General Rules 
of Procedure to clarify that incumbent members must also re-apply and go through 
the appointment process every two years, and to revise and distribute the new 
application form.  Directors Woren and Clark of the Appointment Committee stated 
they will schedule interviews with all of the applicants before the next meeting. 

     
3. Consideration of Amending District Personnel System Manual, and Approval 

of Resolution to Adopt a Compensation Schedule for Unrepresented 
Employment Positions.  
The Board held a general discussion and made several changes to the District 
Personnel System Manual. 

ACTION: Director Dye moved to approve the District Personnel System Manual 
as amended by the Board, and to also approve the Resolution adopting the 
compensation schedule as presented.  (Dye/Clark).  Approved 4-1, Director 
Seaton opposed. 

    
4. Consideration of Resolution Authorizing Participation in the Special District 

Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) Health Benefits Program, and Approval 
of Related Memorandum of Understanding. 

ACTION: Director Blanchard moved to approve the Resolution and MOU with 
SDRMA.  (Blanchard/Clark).  Approved 5-0. 

  

186



Board of Directors Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 
January 18, 2018 

5. Consideration of District’s Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Representatives 
Report.  
The District’s SAM representatives reported on the most recent SAM board 
meetings. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
6. Approval of December 14, 2017 Meeting Minutes. 
7. Approval of January 2018 Warrants for $275,447.04. 
8. Approval of November 2017 Financial Statements. 
9. Approval of Assessment District Distribution #6-17/18. 

ACTION: Director Blanchard moved to approve the Consent Agenda with minor 
corrections to the minutes. (Blanchard/Clark).  Approved 5-0. 

 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
10. Report on seminars, conferences, or committee meetings. 
  
INFORMATION CALENDAR 
11. Attorney’s Report.  (Wittwer) 
12. General Manager’s Report.  (Duffy) 
13. Administrative Staff Report.  (Comito) 
14. Engineer’s Report.  (Kennedy Jenks) 
15. Future Agenda Items – The Board will be scheduling a future meeting focusing on 

parks, tentatively scheduled for March 1st. 
 
ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING 
The regular meeting was adjourned at 9:52 p.m. 
 
SUBMITTED BY: APPROVED BY: 
 
 
__________________________ ____________________________ 
Delia Comito, Secretary Chuck Duffy, General Manager 
 
Date Approved by Board:  February 15, 2018 

 
 
 

187



188



-

ITEM #8

189



190



 Granada Community Services District
February 2018 Warrants 

For the February 15, 2018 Board of Director's Meeting

Date Num Name Memo Account Amount

02/15/18 6771 City of Half Moon Bay Reimbursement per Agrmt -14/156310 · Park Related Misc Expe 43,372.53      
02/15/18 6772 Adam Rosenburg Prof Svc Inv dtd 1/30/18 6152 · Accounting 231.11           
02/15/18 6773 Alhambra & Sierra Springs Jan 2018 6140 · Office Supplies 35.76             
02/15/18 6774 AT&T 01/05/18 - 02/04/18 Pump Stn Ala6170 · Utilities 69.63             
02/15/18 6775 Barbara Dye 01/18/18 Board & 12/1, 12/4/17 C6040 · Directors' Compensatio 290.00           
02/15/18 6776 Comcast 01/13/18 - 02/12/18 Svcs 6170 · Utilities 189.70           
02/15/18 6777 CoreLogic Solutions, LLC Feb 2018 6100 · Memberships 160.50           
02/15/18 6778 David Seaton 01/18/18 Board Mtg 6040 · Directors' Compensatio 145.00           
02/15/18 6779 Dudek 12/30/17 - 01/26/18 Prof. Svcs 6151 · General Manager 7,700.00        
02/15/18 6780 Express Plumbing Mirada Rd Temp System, Medio C1718-1 · EP Mirada Rd Half M 33,775.00      
02/15/18 6781 Hue & Cry Feb 2018 Pmp Sta Alarm 6170 · Utilities 32.65             
02/15/18 6782 Jim Blanchard 01/18/18 Board & 01/22/18 SAM 6040 · Directors' Compensatio 190.00           
02/15/18 6783 KBA Docusys 10/24/2017 - 01/23/2018 6020 · Copier Lease 140.40           
02/15/18 6784 Kennedy Jenks Dec 2017 Svcs 6071 · Engineering 4,650.95        
02/15/18 6785 Leonard Woren 01/18/18 Board, 01/22/18 SAM, &6040 · Directors' Compensatio 335.00           
02/15/18 6786 Matthew Clark 01/18/18 Board Mtg 6040 · Directors' Compensatio 145.00           
02/15/18 6787 Office Depot Invoice dtd 1/29/18 6140 · Office Supplies 417.54           
02/15/18 6788 Office Team Prof Svc week ending 1/12/18, 1/ 6153 · Temp Labor 1,743.30        
02/15/18 6789 Pacifica Community TV 1/18/18 GCSD Board Mtg 6180 · Video Taping 250.00           
02/15/18 6790 PG&E Pump Station Inv dtd 1/23/18 6170 · Utilities 188.77           
02/15/18 6791 PGE Office Inv dtd 1/23/18 6170 · Utilities 119.84           
02/15/18 6792 Pitney Bowes Inv dtd 1/30/18 6140 · Office Supplies 78.30             
02/15/18 6793 Pitney Bowes Reserve Account Postage Deposit 6140 · Office Supplies 300.00           
02/15/18 6794 Rodolfo Romero Feb 2018 Cleaning 6130 · Office Maint & Repairs 70.00             
02/15/18 6795 Sandie Arnott - SMC Tax Collector County Tax-PCN #047-251-100 6220 · Misc. 696.61           
02/15/18 6796 Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Feb 2018 Assessments 5020 · SAM- Admin, Trtmnt, E 158,116.33    
02/15/18 6797 SMC Resource Conservation District Presidio dye testing, Svc Period 76310 · Park Misc. Exp 550.00           
02/15/18 6798 US Bank Equipment Finance 1/24/18 - 2/24/18 6020 · Copier Lease 447.58           
02/15/18 6799 Verizon Wireless Jan 2018 6170 · Utilities 106.13           
02/15/18 6800 Wells Fargo Credit Card Dec 2017 Credit Card Charges 6140 · Office Supplies 480.59           
02/15/18 6801 White Nelson Diehl Evans Jan 2018 6152 · Accounting 2,500.00        
02/15/18 6802 Wittwer & Parkin Jan 2018 Svcs 6090 · Legal- Gen, IPS 20,530.00      
02/15/18 6803 Working Dirt Management Mar 2018 6120 · Office Lease 4,450.00        

TOTAL 282,508.22    

v1  28/2018 191



192



-

ITEM #9

193



194



 Granada Community Services District

 Statement of Net Position (Unaudited)
 As of December 31, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets

1000 · Wells Fargo Checking - Gen Op 964,099$                  
1010 · Wells Fargo Checking - Deposit 5,298                        
1020 · Petty Cash 191                           
1030 · Cash - LAIF 3,568,269                 
1100 · Accounts Receivable -                                
1550 · Prepaid Expenses 417                           

Total Current Assets 4,538,274                 
Fixed Assets

1600 · Land 876,534                    
1610 · Construction in Progress 800,813                    
1615 · Equipment 22,153                      
1620 · Collections System 10,339,397               
1630 · Accumulated Depreciation (5,897,882)                

Total Fixed Assets 6,141,015                 
Other Assets

1700 · Advance to MWSD 1,085,094                 
1710 · Allowance - for Advance to MWSD (1,085,094)                
1720 · Advance to AD- Bond Reserve 494,890                    
1730 · Advance to AD- NCA Fund 585,866                    
1735 · Advance to AD- Assesmnt Revenue 353,542                    
1740 · Security Deposit Office Lease 3,000                        
1750 · Investment in SAM 3,895,049                 
1760 · Deferred Outflows of Resources 36,192                      

Total Other Assets 5,368,539                 
Total Assets 16,047,828               

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities

2000 · Accounts Payable 60,353                      
2020 · Class 3 Deposits 9,196                        
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 1,377                        
2225 · Recology-Del Garbage 11,917                      
2310 · Relief Refund Advance 350                           

Total Current Liabilities 83,193                      
Long Term Liabilities

2401 · Net Pension Liability 152,020                    
2402 · Deferred Inflows of Resources 23,310                      

Total Long Term Liabilities 175,330                    
Total Liabilities 258,523                    

NET POSITION
3000 · Net Assets 6,275,961                 
3005 · Contributed Capital 9,595,349                 
Net Income (82,005)                     

Total Net Position 15,789,305$             

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. 195



 Granada Community Services District
 Revenue & Expenses (Unaudited)

 July 1, 2017 through October 31, 2017

 July 1 - Dec 
31, 2017 

 Expected 
To Date 

Variance              
Favorable/ 

(Unfavorable)

 FY 
2017/2018 

Budget 

Revenues
Operating Revenue
4010 · Property Tax Allocation 324,404       100,000      224,404 200,000       
4015 · Park Tax Allocation -              200,000      (200,000) 400,000       
4020 · Sewer Service Charges-SMC 633,712       641,000      (7,288) 1,282,000    
4021 · Sewer Svc Charges Pro-rated 2,919           -             2,919 -               
4030 · AD OH Reimbursement 15,148         15,000        148 30,000         
4040 · Recology Franchise Fee 11,765         16,000        (4,235) 32,000         

Total Operating Revenue 987,948       972,000      15,948 1,944,000    

Non Operating Revenue
4120 · Interest on Reserves 11,927         14,200        (2,273) 28,400         
4130 · Connection Fees 7,943           23,500        (15,557) 47,000         
4150 · Repayment of Adv to AD-NCA 117,173       39,602        77,571 79,204         
4155 · Repayment of Adv to AD-ARF 70,708         23,898        46,810 47,796         
4160 · SAM Refund from Prior Yr -              2,500          (2,500) 5,000           
4170 · ERAF Refund -              125,000      (125,000) 250,000       
4180 · Misc Income 6,638           1,000          5,638 2,000           

Total Non Operating Revenue 214,389       229,700      (15,311) 459,400       
Total Revenues 1,202,337    1,201,700   637 2,403,400    

Expenses
Operations
5010 · SAM - General 477,570       477,570      -                955,141       
5020 · SAM - Collections 99,980         119,977      19,997.00      239,954       
5050 · Mainline System Repairs -              5,000          5,000 10,000         
5060 · Lateral Repairs 290              20,000        19,710 40,000         
5065 · CCTV -              10,000        10,000 20,000         
5070 · Pet Waste Station 635              500             (135) 1,000           
5100 · County Staff Time - Parks -              2,500          2,500 5,000           
5110 · RCD - Parks -              2,500          2,500 5,000           
5120 · Half Moon Bay Reimb - Parks -              10,000        10,000 20,000         

Total Operations 578,475       648,047      69,572 1,296,095    

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

196



 Granada Community Services District
 Revenue & Expenses (Unaudited)

 July 1, 2017 through October 31, 2017

 July 1 - Dec 
31, 2017 

 Expected 
To Date 

Variance              
Favorable/ 

(Unfavorable)

 FY 
2017/2018 

Budget 

Expenses (Continued)
Administration
6010 · Auditing 700              7,500          6,800 15,000         
6020 · Copier lease 2,469           3,750          1,281 7,500           
6040 · Directors' Compensation 5,030           917             (4,113) 11,000         
6050 · Education & Travel Reimb 249              1,000          751 2,000           
6060 · Employee Compensation 113,127       105,000      (8,127) 210,000       
6070 · Engineering Services 6,489           10,000        3,511 20,000         
6080 · Insurance 936              3,000          2,064 6,000           
6090 · Legal Services 108,030       32,500        (75,530) 65,000         
6100 · Memberships 6,620           4,500          (2,120) 9,000           
6110 · Newsletter -              1,250          1,250 2,500           
6120 · Office Lease 29,650         26,000        (3,650) 52,000         
6130 · Office Maintenance & Repairs 955              1,250          295 2,500           
6140 · Office Supplies 3,087           3,000          (87) 6,000           
6150 · Professional Services - Other 2,700           -             (2,700) -               
6151 · General Manager 39,419         32,500        (6,919) 65,000         
6152 · Accounting 15,000         15,000        -                30,000         
6160 · Publications & Notices 4,498           5,000          502 10,000         
6170 · Utilities 5,287           5,000          (287) 10,000         
6180 · Video Taping 1,125           1,750          625 3,500           
6190 · Computers 720              1,000          280 2,000           
6220 · Miscellaneous 3,525           3,500          (25) 7,000           
6230 · Bank Service Charges 1,703           -             (1,703) -               
6310 · Park Related Misc Expenses 796              -             (796) -               

Total Administration 352,115       263,417      (88,698) 441,000       

Capital Projects
1415-2 · Update SSMP 359              -             (359) -               
1617-1 · Medio Creek Xing Crossing 23,193         175,000      151,807 350,000       
1617-2 · SAM-Lift Station 4,391           -             (4,391) 350,000       
1718-1 · EP Mirada Rd Half Moon Bay 37,975         -             (37,975) 350,000       
1718-2 · SAM - Recycled Water Proj -              7,500          7,500 15,000         
1718-3 · SSC Rate & Reserve Study -              17,500        17,500 35,000         
7100 · SAM - Infrastructure 287,834       286,962      (872) 573,924       
7500 · Projects - Parks -              50,000        50,000 100,000       

Total Capital Projects 353,752       536,962      183,210 1,773,924    
Total Expenses 1,284,342    1,448,426   164,084 3,511,019    

Net Income (82,005)        (246,726)     164,721 (1,107,619)   

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

197



198



-

ITEM #10

199



200



#7-17/18

$5,588.33

Dated:
February 15, 2018

LIMITED OBLIGATION REFUNDING IMPROVEMENT BONDS 2003
Reassessment & Refunding Project

DISTRIBUTION  REQUEST
For Payment of Bond Administration Costs

The undersigned Treasurer of the Granada Sanitary District (the “District”) hereby requests of
the Fiscal Agent for the District the payment of Bond Administration Costs for the items and in
the manner and amount stated in the attached Schedule A, and in connection herewith hereby
certifies that the payment requested is for the Administrative Costs, and that funds are available
in the Bond Administration Fund (Account #94673305) to make such payment, and further
states that all requirements for the payment of the amount to be disbursed pursuant hereto have
been met. 

Chuck Duffy, Finance Officer/Treasurer

DISTRIBUTION REQUEST NO.: 
 BOND ADMINISTRATION FUND

 (Account Number: 94673305)

DISTRIBUTION TOTAL:

$6,100,000.00 
GRANADA SANITARY DISTRICT                 

201



DISTRIBUTION REQUEST NO.: #7-17/18

DATE: February 15, 2018
DISTRIBUTE FROM ACCOUNT #: 94673305

ACCOUNT NAME: Bond Administration Fund

DISTRIBUTION AMOUNT: 5,588.33$          

PAYMENT INSTRUCTIONS: Issue checks and mail as listed below.

Payee Mailing Address Services Provided  Amount 
Fechter & Co. 3445 American River Dr #A Sacramento CA 95864 Audit Svcs: FYE 06/30/17 1,239.05$       

Taussig & Assoc 5000 Birch St, #6000, Newport Bch, CA 92660 Admin Svcs: Dec 2017 161.28$          

White Nelson et al 2875 Michelle Dr #300, Irvine CA 92606 Acctg Svcs: Mar-Jun 2017 2,000.00$       

GCSD GCSD OH Reim: Feb 2018 $2,188.00

TOTAL: 5,588.33$      

SCHEDULE "A"

P.O. Box 335, El Granada, CA 94018

202



-

ITEM #11

203



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  NNOOTTIICCEE  
 
 
 

 

 

 

There are no documents for this Agenda Item. 
 
 

 

 

 

204



-

ITEM #12

205

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text

Genevieve
Typewritten Text



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  NNOOTTIICCEE  
 
 
 

 

 

 

There are no documents for this Agenda Item. 
 
 

 

 

 

206



- 
 ITEM #13 

207



GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

AAGGEENNDDAA  NNOOTTIICCEE  
 
 
 

 

 

 

There are no documents for this Agenda Item. 
 
 

 

 

 

208



- 

ITEM #14 

209



210



 
GRANADA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 
 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Delia Comito, Assistant General Manager 

Date: February 15, 2018 
 

 
  PUBLIC RECORDS REQUESTS – No public records requests were received this period. 
 

Request 
Date 

Requestor Information Requested Information Provided 
Date 

Provided 

07/21/17 Michael Mahoney Recology Franchise Agreement Franchise Agreement 07/21/17 

08/31/17 Transparent California 
Copy of 2016 Employee Comp 
Report with Employee Names 

State Controller’s Report 
with Names Added 

09/08/17 

10/11/17 Craig Brewer Sewer Service Rate Table Code Sec 700(04)-(06)(c) 10/13/17 
              Note: Shaded information was previously reported. 
 
 APPLICATIONS RECEIVED – One application was received this period: 
 

Rec’d Type Owner or Agent APN Address Sq. Ft. Zone 

08/10/17 1A Rogers Clay 047-141-240 243 Del Monte, EG 8,310 R-1/S-17 
09/22/17 Cl 3 Big Wave, LLC/Peck Jeff 047-311-060 207 Airport Rd, Princeton 17,600 W/DR/AO 
09/28/17 2A Coastside Fire Protection Dist 047-261-030 Obispo Rd, EG 103,518 COSC DR 
10/19/17 1A Bettencourt Joe 047-234-220 619 The Alameda 6,273 R-3/S-17 
12/26/17 VAR Coastside Fire Protection Dist 047-261-030 Obispo Road, EG 103,518 EG Gateway 
01/18/18  VAR Wilkinson, Phillip 048-093-040 495 Mirada Rd., HMB 3,697 R-1/S-17 

                                     Note: Shaded information was previously reported. 

 
PERMITS ISSUED – No permits were issued this period. 

 

Permit 
No. 

Type 
Issue 
Date 

Owner or Agent APN Address Sq. Ft. Zone 

3166 1A 07/13/17 Lang Justin 047-105-240 755 San Carlos, EG 6,209 R-1/S-17 
3167 1A 07/27/17 365 Miramar Drive  048-054-120 365 Miramar Dr., Miramar 5,320 R-1/S-17 
3168 1A 08/15/17 Rogers Clay 047-141-240 243 Del Monte Rd, EG 8,310 R-1/S-17 
3169 1A 08/18/17 Cuvelier Jacqueline 047-175-250 265 El Granada Blvd, EG 9,732 R-1/S-17 
3170 1A 11/29/17 Bettencourt Joe 047-234-220 619 The Alameda 6,273 R-1/S-17 

              Note: Shaded information was previously reported. 

 
 SEWER HOOK-UPS – There was one new sewer hook-up this period: 
 

Hook-up  
Date 

Type 
Permit 

No. 
Permit 

Issue Date 
Owner APN Address 

08/09/17 1A 3159 07/07/16 Boyle Jim 047-233-360 425 Coronado St, EG 
09/13/17 1A 3165  06/21/17 Coronado Upper Lot 048-024-430 467 Coronado Ave, Miramar 
02/05/18 1A 3167 07/27/17 365 Miramar Dr., LP 048-054-120 365 Miramar Dr., Miramar 

             Note: Shaded information was previously reported. 
 

REPAIRS – There have been no lateral repairs this fiscal year to date. 
 211



 
 

212



- 

ITEM #15 

213



214



 

 

 
 

8 February 2018 

Memorandum 

To: Granada Community Services District  

From: John H. Rayner, District Engineer 

Subject: Engineer’s Report for February 2018 
                   
  

 
Medio Creek Crossing at Mirada Road 
 
The issues with PG&E power for the pumps were resolved in late December and the temporary 
pumping system started operating on January 5, 2018. The pumps discharge into a 2” HDPE 
pipe, that is located below electrical conduits on the pedestrian bridge and then terminates in a 
manhole on the north side of Medio Creek. In the event of a pump outage, flow will 
automatically be directed to the existing sewer on the old road bridge until the pumps are back 
online.  
 
Replacement of Pedestrian Bridge over Medio Creek 
 
The County is planning to replace the existing pedestrian bridge over Medio Creek, which may 
offer GCSD an opportunity to suspend a replacement sewer under the new bridge. The existing 
bridge was constructed only 16 years ago but has experienced significant corrosion 
necessitating its replacement. For GCSD, this would provide an option instead of proceeding 
with the Naples Beach Project, Phase 2 sewer. We expect to receive a copy soon of a draft 
report on the new bridge, being prepared by the County’s consultant. The report should help 
determine the viability of this option for GCSD. Two items of initial concern are 1) the estimated 
economic life of the new bridge given the short life of the existing bridge, and 2) the structural 
viability of core drilling through the concrete bridge abutments to allow the new sewer to pass 
through. 
 
. 
Naples Beach Project - Phase 2 
 
This project will eliminate the need for a sewer crossing of Medio Creek. Based on my recent 
discussion with a representative of State Parks there may be an opportunity to obtain the 
easement. To proceed, GCSD must first get an appraisal of the value of the needed permanent 
easement and temporary construction easement before entering in negotiations for the value of 
the easements. Compensation for the easements would likely be a reduction in the annual 
sewer service charges for the 6 State Parks homes connected to District sewers. The District 
would also need to have a survey and legal description of the easements prepared before the 
easements could be finalized and recorded. 
 Updating permits for the project would begin as soon as State Parks confirms it will grant the 
easement. The project would likely be combined with other needed CIP improvements. Once 

215



Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 

Memorandum 
Granada Community Services District  
8 February 2018 
Page 2 

p:\01\015011.00_gsd\05. budgets and schedules\board status reports\2018\february 2018.doc 

this project is completed the temporary bypass pumping system over Medio Creek would no 
longer be needed. 
 
Big Wave (Class 3 Permit) 
 
The District has sent Sandis, the engineer for Big Wave, its initial comments on the current 
plans. The developer agreed in November to locate the sewer main in Airport Street, rather than 
in an off-road easement along the west side of Airport Street, and that the onsite sewers would 
not be dedicated to GCSD. However, the developer was told that the District will still need to 
review the design of both offsite and onsite sewers and that they must be designed and 
constructed in accordance with GCSD specifications. 
 
 

216


	00 2018-02-15 DRAFT Mtg Agenda-2-cjd
	Item 1 - TAB
	Item 1a-Staff Report with Attachments (Final)
	CFPD Fire Station No. 41 Permit Agenda Memorandum
	Attachment 1: May 10, 2002 GCSD Staff Report Re: Establishing Service Area Boundaries and Urban and Rural Zones
	Attachment 2: Proposed Resolution of CEQA Compliance
	Attachment 3: Proposed Findings for Sewer Permit Variance

	Item 1b-2002 GCSD Staff Report LCP  1997 Map - Rural inside Urban Boundary
	Item 1c-Variance Findings (clean)
	Item 1d-APPLICATION
	Item 1e-COC
	Item 1f-Grant Deed
	Item 1g-Stmt of Facts
	Item 1h-Contiguous Parcel Info
	Item 1i-Parcel Maps (2)
	Item 1j-CFPD Permit CEQA Resolution (Final)
	Item 2 - TAB
	Item 2a-Memo Re Burnham Strip Proposal
	Item 2b-Burnham Strip_SOW_VegMgmt_V3 (005)
	Item 2c-APPENDIX_A_ECI_SMRCD - Burnham Strip Veg Management Proposal
	Item 2d-APPENDIX_B_Burnham Strip Project Planning Proposal
	Item 2e-2018 01 25 DRAFT First Amendment to RCD Contract (NK2) BD
	Item 2f-2018 02 07 First Amendment to RCD Contract (clean)
	Item 3 - TAB
	Item 3a-Survey 1 Agenda Memo-Quiet River Surveying for the Burnham Strip 2-15-2018
	Item 3b-Survey 2 QRLS Survey BurnhamStrip Addtnl Topo El Granada
	Item 3c-Survey 3 Map-Quiet River Surveying for the Burnham Strip 2-15-2018
	Item 4 - TAB
	Item 4a-cd-Ordinance ADU 1-Agenda Memo-Accessory Dwelling Unit-Ordinance-Second Reading 2-15-2018
	Item 4b-cd-Ordinance ADU 2-2018 02 15 Ordinance Amending Section 701(01(A) -cjd-second reading
	Item 5 - TAB
	Item 5a-Agenda Memo-SAM Additional funds budget amendment-02-15-2018
	Item 5b-Resolution-SAM Additional funds budget amendment-02-15-2018
	Item 5c-Budget-SAM Additional funds budget amendment-02-15-2018
	Item 6 - TAB
	Item 6a-SAM Jan 22
	Item 6b-SAM FEB 12
	Item 7 - TAB
	Item 7-Minutes
	Item 8 - TAB
	Item 8-2018 Feb Warrants
	Item 9 - TAB
	Item 9-2017-12 Financials
	Item 10 - TAB
	Item 10-2018 Feb AD Dist Req
	Item 11 - TAB
	Item 11-No Docs
	Item 12 - TAB
	Item 12-No Docs
	Item 13 - TAB
	Item 13-No Docs
	Item 14- TAB
	Item 14-2018-02 Admin Rpt - GLS
	Item 15 - TAB
	Item 15-February 2018 Engineers Report
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



